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LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

Wednesday; 26 November; 1884.

Conditional ~and.: Homestead ~Selections.—Notice - of
Motion.—~Jury: Bill-<third  reading.—Crowu- Lands
Bill—committee.

The PRESIDENT took: the chairat 4 o’clock,
CONDITIONAL: AND HOMESTEAD
SELECTIONS.

The POSTMASTER-GENERATL (Hon: C.. 5.
Mein) said’: Hon. gentlemen,~—I- have: to lay
upon the table a Return to an Order of this
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Hou.se, made’ on the 19th November current, on

motion of the Homn: Mr. Forrest, with  regard to

homestead and conditional selections applied for

since 1st July, 1884 Tt.is rather a bulky return,

and: will take some time ‘to: print. ~Is it the

desire of the Housethat it should be printed ?
HonNouraBLE MEMBERS : No.

NOTICE OF MOTION.

The Hox. “W. FORREST  gave notice of
motion for Thursday; 27th" instant; to the effect
thatthe Report, withaccompanying plans;of Gov-
ernment Parliamentary  Buildings =~ Committee,

aslaid on the table on the 20th-instant, be now

adopted:

The Hon. W. H. WALSH said : Hon, gentle-
men,—I" must - confess that I do not understand
the way in which business is being conducted at
this moment. 1" thought the Hon, Mr. Forrest
was going to move- some motion: in connection
with the papers that have been laid ‘upon  the
table of the House by the hon. the Postmaster:
General this afternoon,; ‘and now I find that hon.
gentlemain suggesting that another matter should
be: considered, - T cannot understand -at all'the
work that is going ‘on; and I wish' to get some
explanation as to what the business before. us
really is ?

The PRESIDENT: There is: no business be-
fore the House.

The Hon, W. H. WALSH : We are called

upon-to: consider-a certain resolution.

The PRESIDENT : No.

JURY BILL—THIRD READING.

On the motion of the Hon, A.:J. THYNNE,
this: Bill was' read 'a’ third: time, passed; ‘and
ordered:-.to -be: ‘returned to :the  Legislative
Assembly:with message in the usual form.

CROWN LANDS: BILL—-COMMITTEE.

Upon the Order of the' Day: being read for the
further considerationof this Bill "in" committee;
the ‘President :left the-chair, and the House
went into Committee:

Question—That clause 6, as read, stand part
of the Bill—put.

The: Hox. W, H."WALSH  said he really
thought it would ‘be ‘much better for  the re-
presentative of the:Government in that Chamber
to:sit in “his place, instead of ‘where he was at
that moment.  They had been' for some  few
minutes delayed: from = proceeding = with ' the
business of ' the:Committee owing to: that hon.
gentleman not being in his place; and if ‘he was
not prepared. to resume  his seat and: take up
his - proper: position in‘ that Chamber, he' (Hon.
Mr. ‘Walsh) 'would move: that: the ' Chairman
leave the chair and report mno: progress.  If the
Chairman’ would ‘be kind ‘enough to put  that
question, it'‘would ‘probably ‘be:the means of
enabling them to proceed with business.

The Hon. ' W.. FORREST said that when the
motion for the 'adjournment of the debate was
moved last night he hesitated whether he would
speak further on-the question or not, and he 'was
glad now that he did not do so, because he'would
now perhaps:be able to speak” more calmly than
he could have done last night. - The Postmaster-
(General, in the concluding portion of his remarks
last night, said:—

“Under. those circumstances;. he  sincerely . trusted
that hon:: gentlemen would not: deliberately et them-
selves against the decided opinion of a large majority of
the representative branch of ‘the Legislature, especially.
in'a matter in' which they had a strong personal interest,
and in viewof -the" possibilities: that - might take place
afterwards.”

There were impropermotives imputed to ‘hon.
members in those  words; together with a threat
of what might be done in another: place “if  they
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did not do what was. wished by that: Chamber.
‘What were the facts of the case with regard to the
strong personal interest of the large number who
were likely to oppose the 6th-clause ? Of all the
members in the House, and one or two who were
absent, there were only a very small” minority
with the slightest interest under the Act of 1869;
and-he could see around him gentlemen who had
had that interest for periods'varying from eight to
fourteen years, who either previously ornow had
very large ‘and expensive improvements on'their
runs, not one - of 'whom  ever exercised the pre-
emptive right. - And if any members sitting in
that Chammber had’ net exercised the right, but
interded to’ do’ so, he thought' those members
had sufficient sense of what was right and proper
to do their duty to their country irrespective of
personal -interest. "As he was'one of those who
spoke last night; and showed " his feelings in . the
matter, he wished to say most distinctly that he
held - no interest under the Act of 1869, directly
or‘indirectly, so:that it did not'matter one straw
to him, from a personal point" of -view, whether
the' clause passed or not.” He thought it was
béneath the dignity and honour of that Chamber
to: have' threats or  imputations: of {mproper
motives levelled against them, and he hoped:that
the debate would be carried on without anything
of the kind occurring again.

The:Hox, A, C..GREGORY said that last
evening they discussed the general principles’ on
which clause 6 shouldbe eitheromitted oramended
50 far as to take away its objectionable provisions,
He would, therefore, move an amendment that
would have the :effect of carrying out the views
enunciated by those hon. gentlemen who spoke
against the clause.  He moved thatall the words
after the words ‘¢ Pastoral - Tieases Act - of :1869,”
be omitted; with 'a view of inserting the words
“where the lease has been: acquired ‘after: the
passing - of this"Act.” - The clause ‘would then
read thus :—

« Tt shall not be-lawtul for the Governor: in Couneil to
sell’any portion of a'run to-a pastoral tenant under the
provisions of the 5ith section of the Pastoral Leases Act
of 1869, where the lease has been:acquired after the
passing of -this Act.”*

The effect of the amendment would be that in
no new lease: would: there be the right of pre-
emption. At the same time, the clanse would
not interfere with the right of ‘any tenant to pre-
enipt under ‘existing leases, :which: he and
several other hon, members held to be part of the
existing -~ contract. It was' not. necessary to

. make 2 long speech in explanation, because the

amendment wasperfectly clear and open in-its
character.

The: POSTMASTER-GENERAL said: that
when the hon. gentleman rose he thought he was
probably going to'debate the suggestion contained
in one of the evening  papers—that they would

‘accept the situation so far as the'abuses of the

present law were ' recognised; ‘and amend the
clause: by providing: that pre-emptive privileges
should not be exercised unless specified improve-
ments to the value of '£1,280. had been spent. on
the proposed pre-emption; in: other words, that
the amendment would embrace. the - character: of
improvements- clearly -contemplated = by  : the
54th section of the Pastoral Leases Act of 1869.
At the risk of repeating himself a little, seeing
that there were still: some:hon. members, who
were anxious to - do justice between the State
and the pastoral lessee, under a misapprehension
on-the subject, he  would  point out the real
position; -~ Under the Act of 1869 the Governor
in - Counecil was: authorised to-sell a selection: of
2,560 acres to the pastoral ‘lessee in order: that

i the lessée might secure the’ permanent improve-
ments which he bad ‘erected on his" run:

The
abuse that had’ erept in had been:that: of late
years 3 particularly during thelast three or four
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years, pre-emptions -almost inmunerable were
allowed ' where  there - had not. been:even-an
approach to. the erection of ‘a  permanent. im-
provement on the selection:  He believed alarge
number of -hon.‘members would :like to give the
pastoral tenant as: much  privilege as: possible
conaistant with' the (lutention of the Legislature
in’ 1869 and “those  gentlemen ~would  have
some - reason . inadopting: the - suggestion " of
the Observer, and striking out paragraphs (a) and
(d) of the clause. “He 'did not approve of that
suggestion, but there: would: be- some: reassn
in  adopting it, because then the: elause would
provide that in no'case would either the prisent
or any future:Government be:at liberty to sellor
grant any pre-emption to a pastoral lessee unless:
he “had - fulfilled - the - conditionintended - to
precede “the - exercize: of the' powers conferred
on::the - Governor - in ' -Couneil’: by -the 54th
section of - the - Act: of 1864, But: there was
no ‘réason in:the proposition of the  Hon. Mr,
Gregory, He believed they were agreed thatin
future - no: contract - should be: entered  into
between the: -Crown:.and: the  pastoral lessse

enabling the lessee to have a pre-emptive right,:

having in'view the subsequent provisions to' the
effect that when improvements were taken: out
of - .the' possession of - the: tenant - he. xhould
be - paid:for them. - He supposed; however, that
discussion’ would be idle; -he was’ satisfied .that
nothing: he could say, even though' he adduced
arguments that were absolutely incontrovertible,
would “alter: a’ single opinion. Very “anxious
deliberations: had taken place outside, :and he
supposed a determination had heen: arrived-at as
to.the fate of the  clause, | Personally; he was
anxious. to: hear ‘the ‘result, and’ he hoped: the
Committee would come:to. 2 division as:soon as
possible:

The: Hox, W FORREST: said it was not: his
intention :to have: spoken - on the matter again,
but he could wot-allow the last speech of the Tost-
master-General to go. to:the country uncontra-
dicted. It had given him a considerable anount
of trouble to read up the debates that took place
when the Act of 1869 was before the Legislature:
He could not: get-out of Husisaid what he really
wanted;  forthe simple reason that when: the
House 'went: into committee hon. members. were
not reported-inthose days; eonsequently, he had
to refer: ta the  Courier of  that date;  and hc
could' assure-hon. members that so far from:it
being the intention: of the Legislature to insist
that valuable improvements: should be put.-upon
the part to be selected, it was distinctly stated
that the' clause was inserted: for  the  purpose
of giving better security to capitalists.: That
was the objéct of the clause; and if ‘the Post:
master-General; or anybody else; -challenged his
statement: he could ‘produce: the reports of the

discussions onthe clause; as he had -many places- .

marked. Mr,-Stephens;: in ‘spesking on-a: pro-
posal’ to reduce the ‘amount: of improvements
from 10s, 0" 7s, 6d;; said he would resist the
proposition;: because  the  lessees: had- sufficient
privileges already, andcould  select ‘their: pre-
emptions without any conditions or restrictions
whatever, and . could: pick the  eyes out: of the
country. - The Government introduced the clause
because they wanted money. The primary inten-
was toinduce: capitalists to come here ; and  the
cotmtry was-in such a plight- that they-had to
hold out- what they imagined were very liberal
inducenients; but which many . members’ in those
days did not regard as liberal. - But the hon. the
Postmaster-General - distinetly - stated  that the
framers -of the: Act of 1869 contemplated that
every proposed pre-emption would be improved to
thevalue of '£1,280. " He (Mr. Forrest) distinctly
asserted that nothing of ‘the kind was contem-
plated, and that a perusal of the' debates on the
1869 -Act “would  prove this, " The assumption
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that the " Act of 1869 contemplated : improve-
ments to: the value of  £1,280 on" 2,560 - acres
before the lessee .could pre-empt the latter, . was
most unreasonable, as anyone who had informed
himself -of ‘the state of -affairs then  existing
would " essily understand. Why, - even now,
with all their advancement, each run of which
a station -was’ composed. was.not improved:to
that extent, and:it. only  required: a moment’s
consideration to show the absurdity of the whole
contention.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL - said - the
hon; ' gentleman’s “argument amounted. to- this:
That the words **for the purpose of “securing
permanent. improvements,” in the’ 54th section
of 'the “Act of 1869, had no meaning,and that
it -was the intentionof "the Legislature “that
they 'should have mone: - He’ (the  Postmaster-
(teneral)’ did not believe 1. "No man - of
common: - sense-would - believe: that - the Legis-
lature intended  that: those ~ words :should
have no - significance  attached ~to - them: - He
knew womething - about ’ the  administration
of ‘the "‘Aet a’ few: years after it was passed,
and, ‘speaking trom - his' personal “knowledse,
he: could say.-that  whenever  an  application
was ‘1nade for’ a pre-emption:the Minister for
Lands insisted that there should be evidence of
the character and: value of “theimprovements
the " applicant . wished: to  secure. " He  asked,
“3What improvements do- you wish:to secure?
Where are they situated; and -what is the value
of them?” :

The Hon: J. TAYLOR: No:

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL said those
questions were: put, and the Hon. Mr. Gregory
could: bear him out’ on that point.

The: - Hox. - G.. KING: said; notwithstanding
all that had been said about the H4th -clause of
the Aot of 1869, he:still maintained: that: it- con-
ferred no legal right - of pre-emption. . The 55th
clause of that Act-gavethe Governor in Council
power: to resume” the whole of arun. If that
power were: exercised what would - become: of
the  pre-emptive - right 2 -1t would  be" gone:
Could that“ then be ' a right which ' counld::be
anuihilated by the action’ of one.: party:?
He held that it could not.. . By the 54th clause a
permissive power-only-was: granted to the Gover-
nor-in. Council;  and: it struck: him that'it-was
altogethera- fallacy to attempt to- elucidate the
meaning of an Act of Parliament, by guoting the

- speeches made “ by statesmen -and - politicians

during the course of its progress: through Parlia-
ment; They could not’ construe: a statute by
such evidence; " They knew very well-that such
evidence went for nothing ; that; in fact, speeches
were made to carry out individual ideas. It was
only. when a:Bill- came out fully fledged as’an
Act of “Parliament that it was the emanation: of
the will'of Parliament, and by the-words: it con-
tained it must be construed; and they werebound
toabide by them.  If; onone important occasion,
he (Hon. G. King) had allowed: himself-to-be
guided by Hansard, and the speeches then made,
he might have done a: gross.injustice.” Hansard
must go; - and facts must he ascertained in'a: dif-
ferent manuner.. He thought that, in" the A'ct of
1869, the clause which they were now considering
was framed in a spirit of fairness and justice to
the  country,”  The waste lands: of: the colony
were given on’long leases at: a very low  rent
hecause there was no tenure, but' the land could
be resumed ‘at’six months’:notice. It was per=
fectly right under the-circuinstances, that the
(Governor in - Council ‘should ‘retain that power
of “resumption;  There was no compensation
on resumption,  except for improvements, and
that was in a" certain way.  Fencing was only
valued at a fourteen years’life;~Then there was
a permissive  power given' to the Governor: in
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Council: that he might allow- lessees who had
made very valuable improvements on their runs,
which it would not be worth while of the country
to pay for, as for instance an expensive house; the
right to purchase the land to secure the improve-
ments. He was not taking & political view
of “the/question; nor was he discussing it from a
personal ‘point - of “view, “although" he had' pre-
emptive’ rights  which he could " exercise if - he
chose ;'and he could not understand how anyone
could " arrive at-any: other construction of the
54th’ clause than the one he had given, If a
gentleman: came forward and - said,:* I -want to
purchase 2,560 acres,” it would be:the duty of
the Government and Executive Council to ask,
¢ Where are your improvements ?”? and, if there
were.none, to disallow the purchase.  1f; on the
other hand, a person came forward and said, *‘I
want. to select 2,560 acres;: I have made the
improvements required by law,” the Governor in
Council, who.was the trustee for the. country,
should refuse the ‘application = if ~he thought
that ‘the " selection: had 'been so: made  that
by granting it "he would be- deteriorating  the
rest of the public estate.  That was; no doubt,
the intention 'of the Legislature. - Hveryone,
however, viewed the matter fromhis own stand-
point,"and he might be mistaken:in the interpre-
tation of “the Act. But be that as it may,
nothing: ' that - was ' said by - any gentleman
at-the time it was passed: could: in - any
way alter “the i construction’ of ' the  Act.
As regarded . the  6th ' clause  of :the Bill
before the: Committee, it struck him - that it
was a- fair  compromise. - In  his -opinion- the
légal: right: did not: “exist, ~and he thought
adequate . consideration was: given  to- the pag-
toral tenants  in that -Bill.- - They were
offered - for:a  six - months’ ‘tenure - a- fifteen
years’ tenure-at a somewhat higher: rental, on
condition ‘that they gaveup a portion‘of their
runs. - That, he  thought, was ‘a very fair: and
equitable proposali . He could not-agree with'the
Hon. Mr. Gregory’s amendment, because he held
that they -should retain the: words:‘* except for
the purpose of securing permanent improvements
actually made on the portion: so :sold ”; but he
would be  disposed to amend: subsection” (d) by
fixing the' time within ~which' a lessee’ should
make - his - application'to  purchase “at- ‘“two
years” instead of f‘six months.” " He would
be ‘very sorry ‘indeed: to:see any alteration
made  in “the Bill “which would "~ cause it to
be ‘thrown “out. “He' had  noticed: that, in
New South Wales, every new Bill was framed in
a’ inore “democratic spirit: than' its ‘predecessor ;
and it was quite’ possible, if the measure before
the Committee was thrown out and they had
another Parliament.  that~ squatters” might be
offered very much worse’ terms’ than. they were
offered in that Bill; - He could see’the ‘spirit of
the ‘age  and - would:like: to go:with it; and
therefore he ‘'would not:like to. sea the Bill re-
jected.  They should not put up their backs and
say they:would ' not ‘have that, but: should give
due consideration:to the state of things around
them: - If they did not come to some fair con-
e]uszion on'the matter they might regret ‘it after-
wards.

The Hon. J. TAYLOR said he had no-idea
that the hon; gentleman who had just sat down
was ‘so timid as he’appeared to be until he heard
his last speech. He little thought the hon.
member would 'be afraid - of ‘anything in that
matter. - He {Hon. Mr., Taylor). was: not afraid
of ‘another  Bill 'being  introduced that would do
more injury to'them: than: that measure, and he
thought it was ' a’ shameful thing tohold . out
a threat to that Chamber, that:if they did not
pass: anything sent up:to them they would have
something worse. ~ That was a child’s argument.,
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The Hox. .G. KING : It is a very good: argu-
ment.

The Hon: J: TAYLOR said he would: give
his opinion of the Act of 1869, as he was ‘one: of
the gentlemen who assisted in framingit. - The
circumstances were very different to what the Post-
master-General said they were. At thattime the
Treasury was empty, and the object of the Gov-
ernment—which was headed- by Mr. now Sir
Charles Lilley; and ‘which was composed:of Mr.
T. B. Stephens, Mr. Arthur Hodgson; and him-
self; and he thought another: gentleman—was to
get money and- fill the Treasury :as soon as pos-
sible.”:They could not actually pay their way
then. ~ The’ Hon. Mr:. Mein “had stated that-he
knew: Mr. Stephens, but ‘hedid: not think' the
hon. gentleman knew- him' as well as he (Hon.
Mr. Taylor) did. " He knew. the gentleman be-
fore he” entered Parliament; and  afterwards he
knew that - his- views regarding  pre-emptive
rights were very different” to what was stated by
the Postinaster-General.. "Mr.: Stephens was the
gentleman  who . proposed . that ~all - outside
squatters should -have the privilege “of taking
up 2,560 acres of “land on: their runs, and he
said - nothing ‘whatever about improvements.
The proposal was that he should have the right
to" pre-empt 2,560 acres, at-10s. per acre, upon
every ‘block of ‘twenty-five 'square miles;  and
there was nothing whatever about:.improvements
spoken -of.Although ‘it ‘only had the: desired
effect in a sniall measure, the -intention:was to
increase the funds'in the Treasury.  There was
nothing said in the Cabinet about improvements,
nor did he believe'it was ever intended to mention
improvements—the intention simply being to in-
duce people to'buy the land and pay the money as
soon as possible. The amendment which the Hon.
Mr. Gregory had brought forward was one which he
thought of some  time ago, as the best thing to
suggest—thatall leases already granted should not
beinterfered with so far as the pre-emptive right
was concerned; but thatall leases granted in future
should not have that privilege. It was only right
and fair thatsuchshould be the case.” A great many
of those " properties::were purchased by outside
capitalists ‘who no doubt looked ‘upon the pre-
emptive right as a great privilege, and one which
they might avail themselves of to:protect them-
selves hereafter. - He did not; therefore, think. it
would be fair to deprive the present occupiers of
that right. Perhaps he(the Hon. Mr. Taylor) had
not any of the very valuable improvements upon
his properties that the Hon. Mr. King had, but he
would ask how could it possibly be thought that'a
man would put: £1,280:-worth: of .improvements
upon' a block of country ‘of 16,000 acres?  Did
anyone tell him either that it was intended that
the pastoral lessee might only take up oneselec-
tion 2 It was intended that he should be-able to
take up that amount of land upon evel%r block he
held: of ‘twenty-five::square’ miles. ead ‘men
could not’ give ‘evidence; ‘but if Mr. Stephens
were' here now - he: would confirm ‘what he
(Hon. Mz, - Taylor) - ‘had - stated. about  the
taking up : of those pre-emptions, -and- that
there was  nothing  said - about: improvements
at all: It had’ crept into the ~Bill,- and was
never intended:to have: been 'used:in any .way,
and -he was only sorry it had been :brought
forward ‘mnow. “He would  like to.know: when
any ‘Minister had examined or cross-examined
any of thoge tenants .when they applied for their
pre-emptives, as to ‘what improvements. they
had made.  He did mot believe a single. man
had been asked that question.  He would sup-
port the amendment of ‘the Hon.: Mr.: Gregory,
and they would’ see how it ' went, and: then they
should see what they should see:

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL said - the
hon, gentleman had given them some interesting
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personal recollections. of - what ~“took  place in
connection- with the compilationof the Actof
1869, and  he. had: assured ‘them positively that
not a:single word was said in the Cabinet or by
one Minigter.to another with regard to improve-
ments:on the- proposed: pre-emptions. He had
no-doubt the hon. member’s memory was. per-
fectly ‘accurate. with regard to the whole sur-
roundings of the Act of 1869, -and’ doubtless he
could-assure them that that was:so.

The Hox: J. TAYLOR: Yes.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL said  he
would like the hon: gentleman, if that was so; to
tell them: how the words got into the section 7

The -Hox.. J.- TAYLOR : I cannot tell that.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL" said the
words were in the Bill'when' it was introduced
to the Assembly; and they were:in it -when in-
troduced to that: Chamber. = The hon. gentleman
had told them: that' there had been no previous
discussion upon the words: between himself ‘and
Mr. Stephens ; 'and were: they not justified in
assuming that the introduction of those ‘words
was intended to have some significance? Perhaps
the leader of the Government could not ti-ust the
hon. gentleman. It looked: very much like'it.
It looked ‘as if ‘the head of the (Government
could: hardly ‘trust- the hon. gentleman with his
own Bill ;" because those words were in the Bill;
and the hon. gentleman did not ‘know how they
got:in;and “made’ no' inquiry, ‘although “he
proposed- the Bill in: the: Legislative ‘Assembly.
He said " the words: were  introduced with 'a
deliberate intention and no'man could read -them
~—as the Hon. :Mr. King ‘had pointed cut—and
conme to-any other conclusion:but that instead
of “‘conferring - a'right they only ‘allowed the
Governor in Council to'exercise his‘option in the
matter.

The Hox. J. TAYTLOR said he took excep-
tion to the remarks of the Postmaster-General,
and he' could assure that hon. gentleman that
no Minister was ever more trusted by the head of
a (fovernment than he was by Sir Charles Lilley,
‘When he took his papers up they were scarcely
ever looked at after being passed round once; and
he questioned whether the Postmaster-General’s
papers :were . not a great deal :more  scrutinised.
He: said ~again:that “the words ¢ permanent
improvements” in'the section were not intended
to be acted upon.

The Hon.: G KING said he would make one
remark in answer to-the: hon. gentleman. ~An
empty treasury was no'excuse for an illegal act;
If the: treasury was empty and they could: not
raise: money, they should have vesigned: and let
others:do it.

The Hon.:J. TAYLOR ‘said ‘they would not
do that. They stuck to'it. = He would ‘ask what
the-Hon.: Mr: King would do'if ‘he was short of
money ? - Would he not go and mortgage his pro-
perty to raise the money? " Well, it was exactly
the same thing. They mortgaged the land to raise
the money.

The Hox.. T. L. MURRAY-PRIOR said he
could: refer back to.the days in :the colony when
money was very scarce.He had:been for:a very
short time in a Ministry with Mr: Herbert, when
they. actually:'Had - no. money whatever in' the
Treasury.

The Hox. J. TAYLOR : ' What did you do?

The ‘Hox. ‘T. L. MURRAY-PRIOR - said
they had mothing but the daily revenue with
which to pay their way, and the only thing they
could do was to-payas much as they could out
of -that. = He really thought that, if the hon.
gentleman at present representing the Govern-
ment in that Chamber, and his Governiment were
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in such' a. position as.that, they would: be: quite
ready to:sell anything to: obtain money ;" for
not-only-had - they:no-money at: that time
but it was a time also when the public works
could: not be carried on, and when men were
coming down-in: deputations;-and ‘even: threaten-
ing - Government House: itself, and’ waylaying
Ministers, and: cominitting: outrages: of various
sorts;; -and if -they had not been ableé to get a
little: money out- of the daily revenue. to pay
them' -he: did not.know:what might ‘not-have
happened to the country.

The Hox. J. C. HEUSSLER said : that when
the Act of 1869 was passed. he was absent from
the colony on a'visit to-the old country, and he
couldnot ‘therefore speak from his own-experi-
ence 0f what took :place, but -he had taken some
trouble to look up the matter; and he would read
from' Hansard to show what were the arguments
which hon. gentlemen- used to defeat that clause.
In volume IX: of Hansard it would be ‘seen-that
the: Hon. Mr. Taylor; who: was: Secretary for
Public Liands at the time; said:—

“The next clause he. considered:of importance: was
the 51th clanse; Which was as follows i—

¢ For:the purpose of securing permanent improve-
ments it shall-belawful for the Governor.in Couneil to
sell 'to” the lessee of ‘a Tun without: competition at the
price of ten shillings’ per acre any portion of ‘such:run
in:one: block, not being Imore: nor: less'than two thou-
sand five hundred-and sixty dcres, and the boundaries
of” any such block shall us nearly asthe natural features
of the country:and adjacens: boundaries will'admit'be
equilateral and rectangular.””

That was at page 173. At page 176, it would be
found that Mr. -Archerisaid:—

“The -hon; member- who: brought' in’ . the RBill
must know: very little about: the subject:if he thought
a sheep . farmer - condiucted his:operations:in:one place
only;and-that it'would - be of ‘any advantage.to him-in
return for the dams andreservoirs and ‘other improve-
ments’—

Homn: gentlemen; he hoped, would note that—*‘¢in
return for- the dams and reservoirs and other
improvements ”—

“at: his-different’stations; to-he’ allowed :to: purchase
2,560 acres in’one hlock by giving 10s. an acre cash for
it

He would go on to page 186, and read for'them
what. Mr. Haly said on-the subject. They all
knew Mr. Haly; who was a gentleman” who had
the reputation of -being one:of ‘the most: open-
hearted; kind, and honest -men they had in'the
colony, and it: was quite impossible to believe
that that gentleman would; for any: purpose
whatsoever, say anything he did not meau at the
time. He would read: what that gentleman had
said :—

¢« He'was a-squatter, ‘but he should be sorry indeed:if
anyone :thought he would not:legislate - for that which
was -for:the. benefit-of - the ‘whole colony.  The grand
thing of all—-and far above indefeasible:leases —was' to
get'compensation:for improvements;’’

Hon.: gentlemen' would :observe—he “said the
grandest thing of all was' to get .compensation for
improvements.

““Now, the Bill  was deficient in~that respect. The
squatter - could mnot make a: washpool for his sheep,
axcept at ‘a’cost of; at-least; £1,000, besides labour;
and-yet,  if ‘his run -was resumed: the day after he had
finished the work, he received no- compensation  -Now;
what he wanted to. see was, that in such'a case the
squatters :shonld receive . compensation: for such .an
improvement. - The 2,700  acres would - be no: good to
him,hut it -he received £1,000 it would be’ of - some
benefit to-him, The: great thing. this Biil' should do
was to: . encourage squatters: in-competing with:other
countries: If the House would: do:something ‘of ‘that
kind, Queensland:squatters would not submit to their
wool being-undersold in-the English market.”

Now, after the explanation—the able explanation
of the hon: the Postmaster-General, and adding to
that the evidence he (Hon: Mr. Heussler) had just
quoted—he could not see how any hon. gentleman
could still assert-that at’ that time a different
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idea wag prevalent in the House. Tt  was quite
impossible ;-and when anyone attempted to do'so
he could-only:attribute it to-interested motives:
He agreed with every word that was:said by the
hon: ~the  Postmaster-(teneral ‘last ‘night,  that
there must be interested motives.: The Hon: Mr.
Forvest ‘had - said that there were:no: interested
motives;--and -he! no :doubt referred: simply ‘to
pounds, shillings, and’ pence-—to his pocket ; but
there were thousands of other motives besides those
having reference to money. . There were motives
of power ; motivesof old prejudice; and all sorts
of ‘motives, that: might come into play in"dealing
with the ‘miatter. At page 190 of “the same
volume  of - Hansard, Mr.  Palmer: said; when
speaking upon the Pastoral Leases Bill—

«Just: fancy the hon. . Secretary for Landsholding
himself up:as a model of dress and: deportment. It was
a‘complete: farce; and the whole of the hon. member’s
le¢tnre was delivered in-the same spirit. He believed
the hon. member was just-ahout as capable of ‘lecturing
upoli1 the -Bill'as upon dress, and that was not saying
much.” .

Heé (Hon: ' Mr: Heussler) did not. put much value
upon that; but it 'showed that what the hon:
gentleman then said did not command very much
respect in the House.  Since:the Act of 1869 was
passed fifteen or sixteen years had gone by and
the hon; gentleman’s: memory ‘night:be :so: far
deceived ‘that he :wanted: to: convince himself
that what he had-stated was correct. He had
thought over the matter so' long that he had
come-t0 - the:conclusion that what he wished
to: helieve ‘was: right -was so.  However, from
what: he (Hon. Mr. Heussler)liad ‘read, it was
impossible that the Hon. Mr: ‘Taylor could be
correct.” The hon. gentleman had alluded “to
some conversation:that he had had with the late
Mr. T.:B. Stephens; but he (Hon. Mr. Heussler)
was astonished -to-find that -Mr. ‘Stephens never
said s word in:the: course of the debate on:the
Bill.“ Whatever he might have said to the Hon.
My, Taylor—who 'was Minister: for liands at the
time—=privately, he certainly ‘did not say any-
thing: officially ; and’ therefore = what was: the
value-of the conversation of the Hon. Mr. Taylor
with the late: Mr.Stephens? - He (Hon: Mr.
Heussler) had ‘had a great: many: transactions
with the late Mr: ‘Stephens at the time of the
serious crisis in the ¢olony some: years ago. - He
recollected -that he’had -had that gentleman’s
cheques that were not paid, ‘and: when he called
upon him respecting them; he said ‘¢ Oh'! they
will be paid to-morrowor next day; or some time;”
and they were paid: : That was the way the late
Mr, Stephens: had of ‘doing Dbusiness; and mno
doubt the conversation:he had ' had with the Hon:
My. Taylor was of the same value as the cheques
he: (Hon. Mr. Heussler) had got -from him—
they were passed over;; the thing would be done
some time.: " He did not wish to speak further on
the question:: He desired, however, to repeat
that ‘capitalists would: be - quite content  with
their security of ‘fifteen years’ fixed tenure as
against thepresent’ six months’lease. -~ He was
sure-that they would be:quite  willing to take
a“mortgage ~over one-half ‘a  run: instead : of
having a very doubtful security of ‘six morths’
duration. - He could speak with some authority
onthe: subject, ‘because ‘he knew: the: feelings
of bankers ‘and ‘something - about finance; and
there  could: 'be not the  slightest” doubt that
the security offered by the Bill was much better
than that which existed under the: present Act,
If any hon. gentleman: could be: convinced he
really must be convinced by what the: Hon, Mr.
King, the  Postmaster-General, and he himself
nadisaid on:the subject.” There could: be no
doubt: left, because all the arguments: on: the
other side were only sophistical, while those that
had ‘been used: on the: GGovernment: side ‘were
really good: staunch arguments.  Hon, gentle-
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men’ opposite. could simply: say. that- so-and-so
was:a. fact; and that they had seen it in the
Couirder, and so omn. ;

The Hox. T. L. MURRAY-PRIOR i And
impute motives:

The Hox:J..C: HEUSSLER :+ “He had not
imputed motives. " He spoke of persons-having
a personal interest in"the question, but he was
careful to-detach  personal: interest from:  the
pocket. " He hoped his hon. friend was not going
to'attack him as he did last night, but if he did
he (Hon.:Mr, Heussler) would have something
more t0:say.

The Hox. J. ' TAYLOR said he:could ' not
allow the remarks of the -hon: gentleman ‘who
had just spoken to pass unnoticed. He 'did not
suppose that any: other member:of that House
would ever dream of bringing up: a-dead man’s
dishonoured cheques except: that: hon.’ member.
He: felt perfectly -certain: that: there: was mob
another hon. member who would:do such-a thing’;
and he wondered at the hon. gentleman doing so;
because he believed that at the time: referred: to
his (Hon. "Mr.: . Heussler’s) -owncheques-were
dishonoured:

The Hox.J. C. HEUSSLER ;- Hear, hear !

The HoxN. J. TAYLOR : That they were not
paid; and ' were not worth the paper they were
written on';. and yet he brought a dead man’s
dishonoured cheques in!

The Hox. J..C. HEUSSLER : T rise in order
to explain. T did not bring the matter upto the
detriment of my deceased friend.: " J=——

The: Hox." W. H. ' WALSH : - That is not a
question of - order “at: all. = It may be a question
of “the hon. 'gentleman’s: own conduet; but it is
not a:question of ordet:

The -Hox.:J.  TAYLOR ::The coolest” thing
he had ever heard in that House was when the
Hon. Mr. Heussler: coupled ‘himself with the
hon. the Postmaster-General and: the Hon. Mr.
King; and said, *‘ What the Postmaster-General
and - the-Hon. Mr.: King-and I have said must
convince the House:” -~ Good: gracious.! Was
there ‘a single’ member of the House who took
any notice of one word the Hon. Mr. Heussler
said?  As forarguments—wasthere a single hon.
member: ‘who understood what' the hon. gentle-
man ‘said when  he sat down? He ‘said, no;
and - yet ' they were to have the time of the
Committee wasted by the hon. member making
remarks upon & matter that he knew nothing at
all-about. - He (Hon: Mr. Taylor)had now before
him'a copy of the Courier; which fully explained
what' he said-at the time the ‘Act of 1869 was
passed; ‘and :he could find nothing about: per-
manent improvements in what he then' said.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: Tt is not
what you said, but what the House said.

The ‘Hox. J. " TAYLOR : Never mind the

House.
““The Hoxn, W FORREST said the Hon. Mr.
Heussler was quite correet in his statement’ that
the ‘late:Mr. Stephens. did notspeak on the
second reading of ‘the Pastoral Leases Bill:of
1869.. He had examined Hansard, and ascer-
tained that he did'not do so'; but that'gentleman
spoke’in- committee, and he (Hon. Mr, Forrest)
found'in' the Courier——

The ‘Hon. W. H..WALSH : ' 'What in_ the
name of goodness is the hon. gentlemnan speaking
on?  Is it a question of privilege or a question of
order, or———

The Hox. W, FORREST : T am in possession
of the Chair.

The: CHATIRMAN : We do not know:- what
the Hon.. Mr. Forrest is going tosay.
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The Hox. 'W. H.
stop him then:

The Hox. W. FORREST: I stated some time
ago that the late Mr. Stephens. was reported to
have said——

The Hox. W. H. WALSH: T doprotest
against ‘this course’ of * conduct. ~There 'was
another hon. gentleman in possession of the floor
of ‘the Chamber, and the Hon. Mr. Forrest gets
up‘and——

The Hox.. W. FORREST : Mr.  Roberts, I
appeal to the Chair for protection.

The Hox, W. H: WALSH : I trust - the hon.
gentleman will not——

The Hox. W. FORREST: said ‘that when-he
spoke on'a previous: occasion he: stated that the
late - Mr. Stephens was: reported to-have said
certain things, and he was now: going to.quote
from' that gentleman’s speech: in werification' of
his ' statement. . Speaking upon :a motion,: pro-
posed by Mr. Ramsay, for reducing the price of
gre»emphve selections : from 10s: to.7s. 6d.; Mr.

tephens was reported. to-have said :—

‘“He  quite -agreed  with: the -opinions: which ‘had
been - expressed by two: hon. members: that it would
beof - great -advantaze  to: the country to have:  a
large - population established ontheir own' freeholds;
and-he: would like to :know . if those hon. gentlemen
were - prepared . :to give . the  sanie: advantages  to
others besides  tle -lessee that - they . wished to . give
him. 1le was . quite  prepared: to  support .the
amendment if . the power: of: purchase: was given: to
others besides'the lessee,  (Laughter.): He thought the
two. hon. memhers he - referred to: (Messrs: Ramsey and
Archer) :should  either withdraw: the: amendinent: or
follow:it-to-its: legitimate conclusion; and alter. it is:he
suggested. "He thought: the:clause as:it' stood an:ex-
tremely: liberal -one.. The:price  fixed: was: only helf of
that ander which pre-emptive purchases had been made
hitheito, and no-doubt in many cases:the pre-emptive
right which the present clause gave would be exercised
on:land- eyually: good with ‘purchasers.  Lessees ‘knew
better than anyone else the nature of the: country they
held and: its qualifications; and were able to: pick out
the best portions; ‘and when' they ‘had-the whole and
sole pick -he thought: the ‘amendment: to. reduce. the
price very uncalled for.”

He quite ‘agreed with some of the remarks made
by the Hon."Mr, Heussler. ' There were niotives
of ‘prejudice ;- but: there ‘were also motives  of
justice, and it was from those motives: that he
was going: to' vote against the clause” as it stood
in'the Bill.

The Hox.. W. H. WALSH  protested against
the imputations cast by the: Hon. Mr. Forrest
on’ a’long-deceased  member: of ‘Parliament in
days gone by, ‘though that gentleman was an
old - enemy of his. =TIt was ‘not right that:he
should: be quoted ‘in a' fashion that ‘suited hon.
members-of that:Chamber; ‘andthe late Hon.

B. Stephens would be ashamed if he heard
the remarks:quoted  in’'behalf of the amendment
before the: Committee. It was impossible’ that
that gentleman could have delegated any feelings
or ideas ‘he possessed with: respect -to- the land
question ‘to-his hon. friend:any more than to
him (Hon. Mr. ' Walsh)—and they were as far
asunder-as light and dark.  Therefore he depre-
cated the conduct of the hon.  member opposite
inquoting. in: his own way from his own paper
certain’ remarks respecting ‘the necessity for an
improvement - in the land: laws. :He had no
kindly recollections  for ‘the hon. gentleman.re-
ferred to;  but he protested against’ a quotation
being’ made from  his own paper by ‘the hon.
gentleman opposite: for a particular purpose.

The - POSTMASTER-GENERAL said " he
should ‘not be able to condemn' hon. members
opposite out of ‘their own: mouths; but he would
do’ o out of the paper from which the Hon. Mr,
Forrest had quoted: : The Hon. Mr, Stephens
had ‘been referred to ; but his remarks bore: out

WALSH T trust you will
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his: (the - Postmaster-General’s): statement: with
regard to that' gentleman’s views:in reference: to
alienation—that he was not: prepared: to give the
pastoralists any benefits which he was not pre-
pared to give to:the general community.: That
was laid down in the passage:just read by the
Hon. Mr, Forrest.
The Hox. J: TAYLOR ¢ No.

The POSTMASTER-GENERALsaid that was
the interpretation he put on the language. - The
Hon: Mr. Forrest had " indignantly "denied .that
it was:the intention of the Legislature to make
permanent improvements an- element in the con-
sideration  of pre-emiptions; and the Hon. Mr.
Taylor had  asserted that neither: he mnor: his
colleagues, ' nor- Parliament, intended that " it
should ‘be  part of  the" consideration. - But:the
debate ‘from which the Hon: Mr, Forrest had
quoted showed that particular prominence was
given to the fact that pre-emption was: provided
for in‘order:that the -pastoral tenant .might
secure permanent’improvements. - Mr.. Ramsay
moved a reduction in the price, but finding: that
the feeling of the committee was against him; he
withdrew : hisamendment.” : Mr. Ramsay used
the following words :—

“The object of giving the lassee the pre-emptive right
in this clause was to enable ‘him.to secure: permanent
.-improvements: and.the: Colonial ' Treasurer would: give
outsiders the powerof going.on a man’s run, and secur-
ing his improvements: -If the opinion: of the- committes,
however; was- against his ainendment, he would: with-
draw-it.”

The Hox. J. TAYLOR: Who was : Mr,
Ramsay ?
The ~POSTMASTER - GENERAL: My,

Ramsay was - a member: of the: Legislative As-
sembly at the time; and:one of ‘the most intelli-
gent and upright members of - that body.

The Hox, J. ' TAYLOR: The Hon. - T. B.
Stephens did not think that.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: said . that
was his opinion at-any rate, and he did not think
any hon, member would deny that it was a right
opinion. " The remarks he had quoted refuted the
statement that the’ erection of permanent  im-
provements: was not:an essential element: to be
considered by the Governor- in: Council in. deter-
mining the question.

The Hon: J. TAYLOR asked how: it was that
the - Hon. T. B.:Stephens was willing to allow a
reduction -from: 10s::to 7s.-6d. if:that was the
case? It was-very clear that he did not lay any
stress upon permanent improvements.

The - Hox. J.:C.. HEUSSLER 'said: they all
knew what Mr. Stephens thought - with regard to
the price of land—that 7s. 6d. per acre was ample
for any land. - If'he could, he would have sold it
at that price in 100,000-acre” blocks. - Five or six
years. ago they were hard up, and they passed
the  Transcontinental ‘Railway Bill, ‘inviting a
powerful syndicate to come and take millions of
acres of land;in order to give the colony some new
lif¢blood ; and if the last Government had not been
so dilatory  the:transcontinental  railway  would
have been carried out; and -he did not think that
would-have been such a calamity. - But now they
said that the railway should not be made. - And
why not ?"Because they were better off. Five
years ago- land was worth nothing. What wag'it
worth now 2. "He counselled hon.: gentlemen not
to abuse each other, but to talk sense, for then they
would beesteemed: by the country. :~The Hon.
Mr.: Taylor:had :said'"that: his (Hon. -~ Mr.
Heussler’s) opinion: in ‘that: Chamber went’ for
nothing.

The Hox., W. B. WALSH : I say so too!

The How, ' J. C. HEUSSLER said he did nct
i-mind the: Hon, 'W. H. Walsh, -~ He could say,
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however,. with - all- modesty, thathis’ word: was
as:good - as::that  of the Hon. Mr. Taylor.
That hon: gentleman might have his hundreds of
thousands’; ~but he (Hon. Mr. Heussler): had
quite  enough for. his requirements. . Anyhow,
there was no necessity for a'man to be so: purse-
proud as: to- think all the world except- himself
good for ‘nothing. There was no:reason why
everything should be subjected to the * almighty
dollar.” “In :the:course-of - the "debate a most
esteemed friend of his had  been’ attacked.:The
question had been asked—“Whois Mr: Ramsay ?’
He could inforin-the hon. member who asked the
question that Mi: Ramsayv was one of ‘the most
intelligent men in the colony at the time.

The Hox. W. H.. WALSH said that- if he
were allowed, “he would' say the';force of - impu-
dence could go no further, for amore ignorant, un-
English, ill-constructed series of remarks-he:had
never. listened to in his life. - The hon. gentle-
man ought to be aghamed: of -himself for address-
ing: Englishimen—white men--as he:had done. It
was positively discreditable to a  cominunity of
Englishmen that theyshouldlistentothe diatribes
or: the  German’ tribes’ of the hon. gentleman:
Had the hon.  gentleman: no: sense :of national
shame in him ? - Had he no civic sense of shanie
in'his head ? Had he no sense of shame at all
that he should occupy the unconstitutional posi-
tion - which he'did in that Chamber?  He (Hon.
Mr. 'Walsh) told the hon. gentleman' that he was
an innovator; he was not an' Englishman ; he
did not represent’ the: colony ; he did not repre-
sent an English-speaking nation ; in:fact, he did
not represent. anybody, and " yet the hon. gentle-
man dared: to get up. and tell them how:they
should shape theirlanguage and their laws.

The Hox. J..C. HEUSSLER said he rose to
state. what he  mentioned “last night ‘in ‘that
Chamber-——namely, that, as anaturalised foreigner
in’ that House; he had the same ‘right and the
same. privilege as any other member.

The: Hox. W, H.-WALSH said that - when-
~ever a’person” got up to correct them in: that
Chamber’who was not of “their nationality; he
was -out of “order; and: hon. ‘members: would be
abdicating their fuuctions and - their rights -if
they subwitted to it. * What, after all, was the
diatribe: of the hon. representative of :Germany
in.that Chamber 7. It was that same houn: gentle-
men who had dared to express.their: opinion - as
representatives of the colony were wrong. -Were
they to:be. governed - by:Germany, or by such
ignorant representatives of Germany as the Hon,
Mr. Heussler 2 'When' a foreigner of any class
or:clime: showed -himself " fitto advise: homn
members, ‘he (Hon. Mr.” Walsh) would: gladly
accept him, and: work ‘with ‘him  as far as he
could’; but when a representative of a"certain
place; who they knew was at’ that moment an
applicant for a.(Government position; dictated to
Englishmen the course that they should pursue,
he would fell' him that he despised him, and the
Government that employed him,

The Hox..J. C.-HEUSSLER T am not-an
applicant for a- Government position.

The  Hox, W. H. WALSH said’ it was no /

use the hon. gentleman denying that he was an
applicant for a Government situation.

The Hox. W, GRAHAM: said he rose to a
point “of jorder.  The Hon. Mr. ‘Walsh- stated
that-the Hon. Mr. Heussler was an applicant
for:a certain situation; and:Mr. ~Heussler
denied it.- He: (Hon. My, ‘Graham) thought the
Hon. Mr. Walsh should accept that statement.

The CHATRMAN 'said ‘the Hon, Mr. Walsh
was bound to accept the statement  of the Hon,
Mr.: Heussler,
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The Hox: ' W. H. W ALSH said he accepted it
most. willingly, At the 'same: time, he: was
officially informed that the foreign gentleman in
that  Chamber was, ‘and is, an-applicant for a
Government situation ; and he therefore objested
to have him'dictating to.themas ‘to how they
should frame their laws. It was very easy to
deny such'a statement. . “For instance, he (Hon:
Mr." Walsh) might deny that he was.an-applicant
for a Government position, but might, neverthe-
less, have  applied  for ' a sitnation in ‘such a
manner that it'could not 'be fixed upon him.

The Hox, W. PETTIGREW : What " has all
this-to do with'the: Lund Bill:?

The Hon. W. H. WALSH said' the. hon.
gentleman had asked: & very pertinent question.
Tt had a great deal to do-with the Land Bill,
When the (Governinent had & supporter in that
Chamber ‘who was an applicant ‘for 'a- Govern-
ment sitnation, it was ‘a very important matter,
andif-the Hon. "Mr.- Pettigrew  did not see -the
significance “of “it; -he did." He  refused to-be
corrected by an hon.-gentleman who he’had every
reason to-believe was at that-moment an appli-
cant for a Government situation.

The Hox. Wi D.-BOX said they did not seem
to ' be making much progress with the Bill:. The
(uestion involved in-the clause under: considera-
tion was a very simple one.” On the one side.the
Government contéended that there was no right
conferred: by* the 54th clause of ‘the Act of 1869 ;
while on the other, it was claimed that there was
a pre-emptive right given' by that provision.
Both sides. were agreed: that however the claim
arose it would: not- be settled by debate in that
Chamber, but: that the: proper way to settle the
matter was by ‘anaction at -law in the Suprems
Court. - Nothing hon. inembers could say - would
alter the ‘law, -and he . therefore:thought: that
the ‘amendment proposed - by the Hon.  Mr.

Giregory should ~be - ‘accepted;  as it would
leave the " question . just " as the law bad
made it. 7 Heé held " that the: pre-emptive

right should have ‘lLeen: taken away from: the
scuatters some years ago, because the exigencies
which made it necessary when it ‘was:given to
them - had ' ceased to. exist. The effect of the
amendment would e that nio futurelessee would
have the right of pre-emption. The"clause as it
stood -implied’ that: there was a right, and the
(Government - desired “to take that right away.
He hoped the amendment would be-accepted by
the Conmmittee.

Question—That the words proposed to be
omitted” stand part of the clause—put, and the
Comimittee divided :—

CONTENTS, 7.

The Hons. . 8.7 Mein;: W Pettigrew, J. C. Heussler,
G. King, J.Swan. W. H. Walsh, and-J. (. Foote.

Nox:CoNTENTS; 18,

The Hons. T L Murray-Prior. A; C. Gregory, W. Forrest,
AL H Wilson, J. F.-MeDongall, . W. Graham, E. B. Torrest,
K. 1..0’Doherty, F. H.: Hart, W, D. Box, W. I..Lambert,
J. 8. Turper, W. G. Power, J. C. Smyth, P. Macpherson,
W. Aplin, J. Tayler, and A.J. Thynne.

Question resolved-in the negative,

Question—That: the'words: proposed “to be
added be so added—put and passed.

Clause, as amended, put and passed.

On clause 7, as follows :—

¢ 1. From and alfter the comimencement of this Act so
muech of the several Acts specified in the  second sche-
dule to this”Act as'is not already repealed, and all regu-
lations made thereunder rexpectively, shall be repealed,
except as to any rights, claims, penalties, and liabilities
already acerued or incurred and in existence.

« 2./ Trom and’ after the coming of the Third Part of
this - Act’ into’ operation’:in:’any part-of:the colony, s¢
much. of the Pastoral Leases Act of 1669 as is not herein-
ofore repealed, and: all regulations made thercunder,
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shall he repealed - as to sitch part of the colony. excopt
ay'to. any rights, elaims; peualties, and liabilities then
already accrued orincwrred and. in.existence.

3. Provided that for the purpose of dealing. with any
lm}ds applied for, selected; orleased, under any of the
sald-Acts before their repéal, the  Governor: in. Couneil
may continue - to--appohit:” comimissioners and’ other
officers;-and do.or.eause to be " doite ‘all such acts and
things as may benecessary for carrying out’and giving
effectto any applications, . contracts, or agréements,
which. haye ‘before such repéial heen: made under: or
arisen from the said- Act§ or any of them.

“And - provided further that all lands whieh; at the
time of such-repeal; are subject to the provisions of ‘the
said Acts; or. any of thew, 'shall continue to he subject
to'the provisions thereof wntil the saiie shall have been
surrendered or resumed,  or the existing title: thereto
shall:-have: otherwise: determined:  But' this provision
shall not: e construed to authorise the sale of “any land
under the' provisions of ‘the fifty-fourth section’ of ‘the
Pastoral: Leases: Actoof 1863, except in accordance with
the provisions of tle last preceding section.”

The ‘Hox:: W..H, "WALSH said ~he would
like to ask, with the permission of the Hon. M.
Heussler, who represented the Germans in” that
Chamber, whether the Government intended’ to
o on with the Bill? It appeared to him:that; so
far as-the Government: were' concerned; the Bill
was utterly. destroyed, and: he thought it would
be just as wellif the Hon: Mr: Heussler would tell

them what were the opinions of the Governmient -

and of Germany upon the matter; “He would ask
the Hon. Mr: Mein how the (Government conld
possibly go'onwiththe Billafterthe extraordinary
discussion- they had’ just had, and the vote of
want of confidence in the land ideas of the Gov-
ernment: that:had: been carried: by such a large
majority in-that division: ~To’ him ‘it appeared
significant from that " division: that the: (Govern:-
ment were evidently mot in ‘accord with the
w¥iews.of ‘the -Legislative ‘Council. - The: largest
majority, probably; that was ever shown against
a Government:in’ that ‘Chamber was shown on
thelast-division; notwithstanding the fascinating
powersof - the Postmaster-General. " He "said,
puttingall jocoseness aside, it was now atany
rate :due: to:that  august Chamber -that they

should know 'whether the Government intended -

to go on: with: a'‘measure - which evidently, from
the expression’ 'of opinion ‘evinced in:the last
division, had not a ghost of a chance of being
carried. " He put it to the Postiaster-General
whether a’'dignified retirement “at  that stage on
the part of the Government  would not 'be better
than:to go on with the measure and submit: to a
series of disastrous defeats.

The Hox. T. Li MURRAY-PRIOR said that
the amendment-in-clause 6 rendered it necessary
to make an-alteration 'in-clause 7, and he pro-
posed - to:move: the omission of: certain  words
a,fterhthe word ‘¢ determined,’in ‘the last para-
graph.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL said the
hon.: gentleman should: move. something before
that to make the clause fall in with the omission
moved:-in the previous clause.  There must be
an omission ‘made  in  paragraph 2. The words
8o much of,” after the word ‘“golony,”” should
come out, and the words ‘*as is not hereinbefore
repealed,” would also have to be omitted fromn
that paragraph.

The Hon. A: C..GREGORY said-he thought
it would- be hetter to remove the whole of ‘the
2nd: paragraph.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL said it was
necessary to make the omissions he had referred
to, ‘but it'was  equally’ necessary to. retain the
remainderiof ‘ the ‘clause; because when the third
part of -the Bill-came:into: operation- all rights
would" have  tobe conserved: to lessees holding
under the Act of 1869, and who would continue: to
go on-under the operation of that Act.

- The HoN. A J. THYNNE -said’ it -seemed  to
him ~that the 2nd paragraph was in the way
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altogether, and: would: be contradictory: to the
effect - of “the amendment, which  they had  just
passed in the last clause. - The' Act of 1869 was
repealed, as he took it, so.far as all future leases
were concerned.

The POSTMASTER-GENERATL: said it was
s0 -in that clause; he did not" think: the homn.
gentleman quite saw the effect of the amendiment
for which he had voted.

The -Hox. A, J. 'THYNNE: There is: no
oceasion -for the hon. gentleman’ to ‘make these
impertinent remarks. :-The hon. gentlemancan
scarcely reply to anything I say without making
impertinent remarks,

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL : I say the
hon. gentleman is not in order.. L am:'in posses-
sion: of the Chair, and T not going to submit to'be
lectured Ly the hon. gentleman, or by anyone
else.

The Hox. A::J. THYNNE : The hon. gentle-
man should not: be inmpertinent.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: Tsaid the
hon. gentleman' does not know the: meaningof
the amendment for which he has'voted.

The Hon. A, J.: THYNNE : Twish tomake a
personal explanation. - The hon. gentleman has
repeatedly; inreplying to me, made use of imper-
tinent expressions.

The - POSTMASTER-GENERAL said the
hon. gentleman was quite out of ‘order, as he was
in possession of the Chair, and if he was not in
order: the: Chairman’ could call -him"to' order;
but he was not going to be lectured by the Hon.
Mr: Thynne. " He repeated that the hon. gentle~
man—andhe did not use the expression inan
offensive manner at all-that the hon. gentleman
evidently did mnot-understand: the effect' of ‘the
amendment for which he had voted. * The hon:
gentleman: stated in-his remnarks that the: effect
of ‘the amendment would be to repeal the Act of
1869, s0 far as futureleases were concerned.

The Hon. A, J. THYNNE : Hear, hear!

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: 'Well, it
was -not so. 1t simply. provided: that:in future
leases under the  Act 0f 1869 should not carry
with them the power on the part: of the Governor
in:Council to'grant a pre-eniptive right over any
portion: of the run.  That was what had been
done’ by the amendment: made in the previous
clause;, and it was' consequently necessary to
strike out those provisions:which were framed on
the assumption: that they would: repeal the 54th
clause of ‘the Act of: 1809. - It was, nevertheless,
necessary that they should repeal a portion of the
At of 11869 o far: as any district 'was con-
cerned which: came under the operation of  that
Bill; - because it would be quite inconsistent with
the ' provisions of 'that - Bill to' grant fresh leases
under ‘the Act of 1869 in such districts. 1t was
not-contemplated - that those leases should ‘issue
atall'in the case of ‘lands which came under the
operation : of “the -Bill:at present before them:;
but there were. other:cases:in which the runs
would remain under the: operation of the Act of
1369, and it-was notintended that they should
interfere in” any way with the rights of lessees
under- that: Act.  The lessees under that Act,
in districts: which were not declared. under the
operation of the present Bill; should remain under
thatAct ‘as long as they thought proper, and
their rights were not in any way interféred with,
until they of themselves came under the present
Bill.: . They wished, however, to provide that no
new leases under the provisions of the Act of
1869 should be issued in any district in which the
present Bill would apply.

The: Hox. T. L. MURRAY-PRIOR moved
the omission’ of the words ‘‘so much of ” after
the word *“colony,” in the 2nd-line of the 2nd
subsection of the clause,
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The Hox. W. H. WALSH said; before - his
hon. friend carried ‘that motion, he hoped  he
would “explain' to . the Council  the - object: in
moving it. ' They were simply called - upon now,
at-the instigation -apparently of a- secret con-
clave; to omit certain words without any explan-
ation being given as to:why those words' should
be:omitted.  “No doubt: the Hon. Mr. Murray-
Prior, and' the hon. gentleman who sat along-
side “him—the  Hon. Mr. Gregory—thoroughly
understood each’ other, ‘and perhaps two ‘or three
hon. gentlemen who'sat behind them understood
what was being done, but'the rest.of the Council
were left' in darkness upon'the matter ; and he
douibted whether: even: the Hon. -Mr.: Thynne;
who was supposed to ‘represent: the Opposition
in that Chamber on'the Land question, under-
stood-7it. " The  Hon. Mr. Murray-Prior ‘had
simply risen and moved the omission of ‘certain
words. . 'Well, they were not dumb-driven cattle
yet, and they wanted to know 'why those words
should ‘be omitted.

Amendment agreed to.

The clause:was; on motion: of the Hon: T. L
MURRAY-PRIOR; further amended: by the
oniission ‘of -‘“as:is not hereinbefore repealed’?
after *1869,” and- of ‘the words, ‘“But.this pro-
vision: shall ‘not:beconstrued to-authorise the
sale of any land under the provisions of the fifty-
fourth ‘sectionof ‘the Pastoral Leases ‘Act of
1869, except: in: accordance ‘with:the provisions
of:the:last preceding section” at-the end - of the
clause.

Clause, as amended; put-and passed.

Clauses 8,9, 'and 10 passed as printed.

On clause 11, as follows 1—

 The: Lond Board:

“ There shall be constituted for the purposes of this
Acta board, to be.called the land: board; consisting of
two fit and proper persons, appointed. from time to'time
by the Governor in::Council: by ‘commission under his
hand and the Great Seal of the Colony. :The board shall
have' and:exercise the powers-and duties: hereinafter
prescribed:

‘;This section takes effect:from :the: passing of this

ot

The Hown. AL C. GREGORY ‘said he did not
rise t0 propose to do anything with that clause in
particular;: but he: thought:that a’ c¢onvenient
time to make some remarks upon that: part of
the Bill generally, and - also: o shadow. forth
what' he- proposed to: do ‘at - alatter stuge;
because; although' 'they were  in  strictness
bound 'to : consider: only: the'clause  before
them; still ‘he-thought ‘it would be highly incon:
venient if ‘he did not acquaint the Committee
with important amendments that were intended
to.be moved in connection therewith. ~ He cer:
tainly could not agree with the system:set forth
of ‘determining important questions by the land
board ; and the difficulties of getting two fit and
proper: persons to fill'the autocratic: position in
which it was proposed 'to place the land board;
and of rendering the scheme thoroughly effeetive,
seemed to. be  almiost” insuperable.  Suppose,
for instance, it were proposed ‘that the members
of that Council should act as arbitratorsof how
much rent the pastoral lessees were to pay; how
boundaries ‘were to be settled; and what ‘the
Government should: "do in regard to certain
matters under the Bill which were to be referred
to the board, they should be viewed as being fit
to be relegated to a place ‘half-way between that
and Tpswich, = "And yet the land board as pro-
posed:by the Bill was practically, as nearly as
possible, in: the  same: position. Tt was to
consist- of ‘persons: selected by the Fxecutive
Council, who were in: fact the representatives of
the legislative body. < 'The Executive were: ap-
pointed by a certain-system under the Constitu-
tiun, and they from time to time recommended to
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the Governor the appointment’ of members: of
that House.  Consequently the members of -that
House- had “been  appointed” under-exactly the
same’ conditions as’the ‘members of the land
board would' be, and under such conditions that
House ought to be ‘equally fit- to be-arbitrators
in the matters to be put within the power of ‘the
land ‘board.: “He' could mot: himself-think :that
that would be a benefit o the State, and there-
fore he:did not-think -that the land board;-as it
stood’ could be of ‘benefit: to: the: State.  His
own view-was that in:all cases: those who had
what might be’ termed the final power, such as
would ‘be:given: to-the land board, should: be
responsible “to - Parliament. It “'was a great
principle of their:Constitution that Ministers for
the time  being ‘must have  the voice of  the
majoriby.of ‘the representatives; so:long as they
had that they were able to govern; but when
there was: a.change: of ‘public opinion, of ‘course
there was: a change of Ministry. But it was
proposed that they:should have a board placed
beyond ‘that ; ‘and,: although it might ‘be con=
venient to: put such an important thing as the
management of the:Crown: lands of the colony
beyond: the immediate  control:of 'publie: con-
vulsion:” or-feeling: for ' the. moment, still it
would place those who: were to administer: the
public -estate beyond the control of ‘any people.
The only: way to make the land board a suitable
body would be’ to:make  some pravision  for
appeals; and he therefore praposed to move a
substantial amendment when they got to-clause
20—an améendment which would have the effect of
remitting questions that might have been decided
by the board—not back to the board; but to'arbi-
tration. In other: respects: he did not see'any
objection ‘to'clause 11 as' printed; because it. was
simply a. preliminary matter; and if: there was
to: be:aland board at all such:a clause was
necessary. . He felt inclined at one time to move
an-amendment providing thatno.person who had
been:during . the 'preceding ‘twelve ‘months a
member:of either: the Legislative ‘Assembly or
the: Legislalive Council should be eligible as a
member -of “the  board, but considering  the
impossibility of - freedom from . political - bias,
and the: difficulty of ' getting ‘suitable  men,
he: thought it ‘far better. that the HExecutive
Government  of . the day should be left free. to
select wherever they chose. - He did not say that
with the slightest hope ‘of being selected; and he
might say that even if the position were offered
to himn he:should not accépt the: offer.  He was
not trying to make difficulties with regard o the
passing of: the Bill but was simply anxious to
make 1t workable in the direction of his own
convictions,
Clause put and passed.

Onclause 12, as follows i—

“Bach of the members of the: board shall; during: his
eontinuance -in:office; receive ‘a-clear annual salary of
one-thousand pounds; which shall be a charge upon and
paid out of the: consolidated revenue.: They. shall not
be capable of being members of the ‘Executive Council
or.of ‘either  House of Parliament; and shall not be
allowed: to act as directors: or::auditors or.in any other
capaeity take part in the management of iany bank,
Jjoint-stock” company; trade or: business; or to’ acquire
any-interest in'any holding under this-Aet.”

The Hown, 'A. J. THYNNE pointed :out’ that
the word ‘*holding ” did not include what might
be a temporary license under Part IV

The. POSTMASTER-GENERATL said: that,
perhaps, -a strict: interpretation of  the  clause
would:be to:the effect that the greater included
the less, and that therefore the word :“‘ holding”
wag. sufficient ; -but to make the clause more
complete, he moved. the insertion of the words
‘“or‘license” after the word ¢ holding.”

The Hon. W: GRAHAM asked the meaning
of the term * clear annual salary "?  Would thg
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members’ of - the beard be - allowed travelling
expenses in the event of their having to go from
place to place?

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: said ' the
salary would be: £1,000 a year, and if - the mem-
bers of the board had to go journeys the payment
of ‘their expenses would necessarily fall on the
State. :

The ‘Hon, W. GRAHAM : Are they to: be
paid at the same rate as the judges ?

The POSTMASTER-GENERAT : said he
could not tell what the rate would be, but they
would not be: entitled to make a profit out of
travelling expenses. : There was a rule with re-
gard: to the: expenses ‘of district: court  judges,
but there  was none with regard to those of
Supreme  Court:judges. The’ expenses of the
latter ‘might occasionally- be of: an:exceptional
character ;-but’ they were gentlemen’ occupying
honourable’ positions, ‘and their: accounts" could
not be investigated ‘with that minuteness which
could be applied to those of ‘ordinary lesser indi-
viduals,

The Hoxn.: W.  GRAHAM said it appeared
that the expenses of those judges: of the  Su-
Ereme Court could ‘not be looked into, ‘and it

ad been said by a very high dignitary that he
hoped the time would never come when it would
be necessary: to'look into: their expenses.  He
wanted. to:have the allowances of ‘the members
of -the ‘land" board defined, because, ' as the
matter stood at present, they would hold about
the - highest and ‘most responsible position in the
colony, -and he should like to know—-=

The Hox. W. H. WALSH ;- Who they are.

The Hox. W. . GRAHAM said he should like
to know that ; ‘but what he wanted ‘to know was
whether any arrangement had been made with
regard to their: expenses; ‘and whether it was to
be considered, as-in the: case of  Supreme Court
judges, ‘an improper ‘thing to inquire into those
expenses.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL said: that
there” was. no’'law : providing = that ' the ex-
penses of - the “judges: should: not ‘be: in:
quired “into, ‘but it had been  the: practice to
assume  that = they would not make ' a’ charge
which had:not been legitimately incurred. e
could give’ no assurance ‘beyond promising that
the  Government of the day would see that the
members - of the: board did not ‘make any im-
proper charges for travelling expenses. It would
be improper to fix a scale which would be binding
under all circumstances. If they fixed two guineas
a;day, that might be insufficient in someplaces,
owing to the expense of ‘provisions, accommoda-
tion, or-locomotion.

The Hox. A. H. WILSON said the salary of
£1,000: a - year  for:such  responsible  work was
80 paltry: that ‘the less said- about travelling
expenses: the better.

The Hox. W. H. WALSH ‘said that if the
amount: was small, if “it ‘was. only £1,000, that
was ‘no. reason why the question of travelling
expenses should not-be: considered: by the Com-
mittee. ‘It was their bounden duty to.consider
whether - the  board = wonld:  perform  their
duties for -the payments: which the Committee
were ‘called upon' to confirm. - The Postmaster-
General was_ leading the ' Committee “entirely
astray. = He was leading them from the real
question-at issue to. the paltry question whether
£1,000. a2 ‘year - should: be: paid to the  men
employed ‘under the Bill.. He' trusted that the
Hon.-Mr. - Taylor,who was  supposed - to be
custodian- of the public purse in-that Chamber,
would apply himself to the matter.

The Hox.  W. FORREST said he was sorry
to see that the salary was fixed ap such alow
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amount, and thought it:should be at least’ £1,500
or £2,000.: - With regard to travelling expenses,
that was entirely a matter for the Hxecutive.

The: Hon. 'W. GRAHAM said he imagined
that the Government, in appointing twomembers
of ‘the board, intended to get: thoroughly honest
men—men-entirely above suspicion.

The Hox. W.. FORREST : Where are they?

The: Hon.. W. GRAHAM: said 'he believed
they were to:be found, and that it was:theé inten-
tion of the :Government to-appoint such mnien;
He took exception, however, to the latter part
of :the clause, which hedged the memibers:of the
board: in so -closely. It ‘provided. that they
should  not be allowed’ to. act: as ‘‘directors or
auditors, or ‘in:any other capacity take part: in
the management of any bank; joint-stock com-
pany, trade or business; or to acquire any.interest
inany holding under: this:Act.” - The first. part
of ‘the clause contradicted ‘the latter part. The
first:part-showed that-the Government: believed
they: could get-two honest men‘to do.the work of
the. board, while the:second part:seemed to'indi-
cate that it was necessary:to fence them round
with stringent provisions. He agreed with the
Hon. Mr. "Forrest that. the: salary 'was not:too
great for men who were competent to discharge
the responsible duties attached :to the office; and
he would be quite willing to: vote  that it should
beincreased by £500.:He was aware :that they
could not increase the salary in that: House; but
at- the same: time it ‘was competent: for: hon.
members ‘to express their opinions.on the subject.

The Hox: Jo TAYLOR 'said it appeared: to
him' that the argument: of - the hon. gentleman
was that honesty ‘and honour were to:be'bought
by pounds; shillings; and ‘pence. - He  (Hon, Mr.
’I%ylor) maintained ‘that they could get as good
men at'£1;000 a year as' they could at £2,000.
He ‘thought' it' would be an'easy matter to-find
two: men-who would: be very glad: to ‘accept the
position-at “£1;000 a year; and  perhaps . they
would “be'as: honourablé ‘as any member, of that
Committeée. - He would like ‘to: see the amotnt
of “travelling’ expenses which the board would
be' allowed  fixed : in -the  Bill. He believed
that; ‘at the present time,  there were  plenty
of -officers :in’'the "employ: of “the ‘Government
who received a stated salary, and also a stated
allowance’ for ‘travelling ' expenses; ‘and " he' did
not see why some provision: of that kind should
not be inserted in the Bill:: As' the-matter now
stood it * was “uncertain how much - the board
would be paid, and they might run up an amount
which would' “exceed -their fixed:salary. = An
honourable member asked—Supposing - the board
lived at a cost of £200 a year; what were they
todo withi the -other £800, becatise they were
forbidden:to invest?

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL :: They are
not forbidden to invest.

The: Hon: J.: TAYLOR 'said: he thought
they were; The clause: provided that they were
not to‘act ‘*‘as’ directors, auditors, or in:any
other capacity tale part in the management of
any ‘bank, joint-stock. company, trade, or busi-
ness.” . The only fault:-he found with the clause
was: that it did not specify what the travelling
expenses - should “be, "so that the board might
know exactly what would be the amount of their
salary.

The Hoxn. W FORREST: said it wag obvious
that' his: friend ' (Hon: ‘Mr, Taylor) ‘had never
read *“Vanity Fair;? or, having read it, that:he
did"-not: think the  same ‘as ‘“Becky Sharpe.”
““ Beclky” assessed the amount for which'a:wonman
could be virtuons, at'£10,000 a year. The Hon.
Mr.“Taylor said a man could be virtuous for
£1,000 a year.
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The Hox, J. TAYLOR: T do. .

The Hox: ' W. FORREST said he wag inclined
to agree with:‘* Becky.”

The Hox. F. H. - HART said he did not - think
it was a:question so - much of honesty as of secur-
ing men competentto discharge the responsible
duties 'with which the board would be entrusted.
The Government “had: a great  many ‘honest
men’ intheir service; ‘but he quite agreed: that
£1,000 a year was a very paltry sumn: to offer
two ‘men'-to undertake the :responsible posi-
%(')ﬁ that ‘the’ board would: occupy under -that

il
and:experience to:do.the work- satisfactorily, and
putting aside the question of honesty altogether,
he thought' menwho: would' :be competent :to
perform: the dubies: required of ‘them could turn
their energies iin another direction where:they
could: make double or treble :£1.000:a year, and
it might therefore bedifficult to get suitable men.
That was the difficulty he saw in connection with
the matter.

The Hon: W. GRAHAM said  he wished ‘to
say-a few ~words: in: contradictionof one: state-
ment made by the Hon. Mr. Taylor: "He (Hon;
Mr: Graham)did not-say  that it~ would be im-
possible to'get honest men-at: £1,000-a year, bub
that it ‘'would be difficult to get thoroughly:com-
petent -men‘at ‘that  salary.. - The Hon: Mr.
Taylor stated that there would be: no trouble in
getting any number of men for :£1,000 a 'year to
do the work ~of  the board. " He (Hon. Mr.
Graham) contended that it would take an excep-
tional man—a man of ability and experience—-to
efficiently ‘perform: the duties imposed: on ithe
board by the Bill; and a man:who was compe-
tent ‘for such a position ' would  ‘be & fovl ‘to
accept it even at:'£1,000 a year, as he coulddo
far better in other ways: = Of course he knew they
could get:any number of men to accept-the posi-
tion at'the salary stated in'the: clause.  There
were some men-who would not hesitate to'accept
it at £500 or £250.7 The question they had to
consider 'was’ 4 very serious:one; because on-the
way: it was'decided depended ‘the administration
of the Bill.
ministration of the land laws: to'a board was a
new departure .in' their legislation. - Hithérto
they: knew. what: they were ‘doing, because they
had a ‘responsible Minister to: look' to ;: but
now./it: was  proposed to transfer his: .work
to . an-irresponsible “board. - He hoped :before
the Bill ‘was  passed: that: they would know
who the gentlemen were who were to constitute
the board.: They knew one gentleman to: whom
the position had’ been  offered; he referred :to
Mr: Rankin. That gentleman: was no doubt a
very :able. man, and had: written: some good
reports; but-he (Hon. Mr. Graham) had not the
slightest hesitation in saying that, on account.of
his: strong prejudices and’ his theories, - Mr.
Rankin:would have been: a-very unfit - man to be
one of the members: of ‘the board; : Fortunately
for the colony he refused the offer; and at.present
hon, 'members did not know: who was to be
appointed. He (Hon: Mr, Graham) believed it
had been promised that they should:be informed
before the Bill: was passed; and he hoped they
would know, soon; as a very great: deal depended
upon the men who would form the board.

The 'POSTMASTER: GENERAL said he
sympathised very much- with’what had fallen
from the last speaker. It was  very important
that a proper selection should: be:made of gentle-
men:tofill the position of members of -the board.
His sympathies:were’ entirely -with -those hon:
members: who: thought the proposed:salary was
too small, and, personally; he would ‘have liked
to sse a-larger aniount: of salary attached to the
office ; not. that he doubted the ability: of the
Government to get thoroughly capable men who
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were willing ‘to accept the position, for he had no
fear on that point. It must not be: forgotten
that a/salary of ‘£1,000:a year was the highest
they gave :to . any Civil - servant except- pro-
fessional - men, such- -as -the ‘Chief - Engineer
for: Railways, ‘and the Engineer for Harbours
and Rivers. It -was also-as high'asalary as they
paid to-most - of ‘their judicial- officers: He was
quite satisfied that if the -Government -were re-
stricted in their  choice to: the: Civil Service—
though he hoped they would not be=—they would
be able to get thoroughly suitable men, as far as
honesty and ‘ability ‘were: concerned, - He must
candidly say that the Government had not mads
up their minds; and that he did not: know who it
was in contemplation to appoint:  There were, he
knew, quite as good men in the Civil Service as out
of it;"but: he' would admit that there might possi-
bly ‘be some difficulty in getting men outside of
the Civil::Service; -who would: be very eligible
to‘accept the “position-at' £1;000:a year; as they
would: be ‘restricted 'in: their financial - engage-
ments ;- and: under’ those “circumstances : they

-might:  feel “that ' the :remuneration  was" not

large enough. “With tegard to Mr.. Rankin,
he-believed  some “informal ‘offer was- made to
hiin’ by ‘the : Minister for Lands; who was ac-
quainted with him. He:(the Postmaster-General)
did ‘not profess tobe able to-speak ‘as to-the
qualifications:of :Mr. Rankin, but, seeing that
he had refused the position; he did not see why
his mame should be introduced into that discus-
sion.” “He (the Postmaster-General) felt confident
that 'he ‘was expressing the sentiments of his
colleagues; as well as of himself, " when he stated
that it ‘was the: desire of every member of ‘the
Governinent to secure the' services of upright,
impartial, and capable men.

The “HoN.  J. TAYLOR: said: he had: no
doubt that the hon: gentleman:krnew: perfectly
well who were to be appointed.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAT::: I'do not.

The Hon. = J. TAYLOR said : the  Post-
master-General  had: just: stated: that ‘no. Gov-
ernment - official received : more - than  £1,000
a'year; except  professional: men;  fand  he
(Hon: “Mr. Taylor): did »not see  why ' mem- "
berg of ‘the board; whose duties” were not more
arduous’ or - responsible : than those performed
Dy Ministers; should: be: paid :a' larger :sum:
Ministers only received: £1,000" a year, and they
got.: their -travelling - expenses. - The  board
would also be allowed their fravelling expenses;
and he thought the arrangement was a very fair
one indeed. = There was one ‘question he would
ask, which he had put before’ when:the Post-
master-Gteneral “was: absent from - the: Chamber;
and that was whether the-members of ‘the board
were to-travel ornot? '

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL: said that
was provided for in section 15; which-said that the
board ¢ shall fromtimeto time hold public sittings
in Brisbane or elsewhere; to be called land board
courts,” “All “he could say was:they were not
restricted  to. Brisbane. ' In’ the ‘majority of
cases: it ‘would ‘doubtless ' be found ‘more con-
venient for the board to'hold sittings'in Brisbane.
Where there was a difference between parties;
and it was found 1more: convenient to determine
the matter on the spot or'in: the vicinity of the
residences of the parties; the land board would'go
there';: but in: ordinary ‘cases; as they would no
doubt require” to have ‘access: to  public docu-
ments, it would "be much more convenient for
them to transact their business in Brisbane.: He
would repeat, however, that: they were not con-
fined to'Brisbaue.

The Hox. ' W. GRAHAM said the Postmaster-
General ‘had rather deprecated his alluding to
Mr. Rankin; but it was:a matter known to the
public. It had come out'in-another place and
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was openly known; and- he'did not therefore ‘see
why he should not allude to it in that: Chamber,
As: to there: being men in the Civil: Service
atpresent capable-of -carrying out the duties
of:-a member: of  that ‘board; ‘he himself knew
one or two.men—whose names he: was'not going
to.mention, nor wag he going to :say anything of
them that would enable anybody to-identify the
men he meant-—but he knew of one or two men
in the Civil Service; who:-he considered would be
more-eligible than anyoneoutside of the colony,
as they were menwho had an'extensive knowledge
of the colony. - He did not think it would be too
much to-ask that the salary to be given should
be -inereased: to: £1,500, nor would that be too
much for: the men he had.in his“eye; though he
did: not: know whether the (Government  werg
thinking abotit- those men or not.: He thought
it just possible that the very best men might be
blocked, and prevented from accepting the posi-
tion of a member of the: board; by the extreme
stringency of the'last part of the clause.

The Ho~n. W. F. LAMBERT said he:did not
agree with the Hon, Mr, Taylor that the salary
offered for a member of the board was sufficient.
The hon.  géntleman had alluded to members of
the Government receiving only £1,000 a year, but
he had evidently forgotten totake into considera:
tion:the fact that the members of the Govern-
ment, while receiving £1,000 s year, were not
called upon, as the members of the board would
e, to abandon ‘their ordinary ‘callings or: pro-
fessions. . The: members: of  the board  were

-expected to: give up everything else when they
accepbed a position on the board.  He would ask
the Postmaster-General whether, in the event
of ‘a gentleman holding shares in a mining claim
being appointed. to the position of ‘a member of
the ‘board, he wotld be:compelled to give them
up-and take them into the market and sell them
at once? There were a good many other things
that might turn up, and that a gentleman might
be debarred from entering into; if he accepted
such & position. There were really: verv few
persons‘fitted  to ‘hold such a position; as it
required that:the occupant should havea general
knowledge and long experience of the colony.
It -was not any: new arrival; or'a man who had
lived most of his life in town;  who could be ap-
pointed tothat position: - He was.confident that
aman- should have some bush: knowledge-—and
that could not be gained:in a day or two, or in'a
month=-before hecould properly fill such a posi-
tion,"He would like to see a good salary; say of
£1,500, - set apart - for  the position; in- another
place; as they in'that Chamber had no power to
deal with'it.

The Hox. ¥, H. HART said they had, of
course, ‘no. power : to ‘alter .the amount of the
salary, but he:took. it that any expression of
opinion given:on the ‘subject in that Chamber
would be’ received by the Postmaster:General
and. his- colleagues, and ‘have due weight: He
wished :to point out: that in making an appoint-
ment-of members:of ‘the board they:would ' have
to:get the best  men they could, and they would
also want permanent men,  He quite ‘agreed
with what ‘tlie Hon: Mr.-Graham’ had: said--
that there were good men'in the’ Civil Service at
the present time capable of unidertaking the duties
of ‘a-member of :that: board; ‘and: who would be
it the same time glad to undertake those duties ;
but: if they undertook the ‘duties, and’ carried
them out successfully and earned areputation
for themselves in’ working that board, before
eighteen months: were up they wonld find them
snapped up and-taken away from the country.
Tt:was.for: that reason he said they:should hold
yut’ an:inducement - to: men to hecome: perma:
nent members: of ‘the board.  He could say of
his: own - knowledge “‘that - there were very
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good -men . already: in the  colony quite capa-
ble of “accepting. a’ position ‘onthat: board;
but they ‘could ‘not ‘expect  them: to: remain
permanently on the board when such sinall com-
pensation was offered ; -and he' asked:whether: it
was not a matter for the Government to consider;
that the members of the board should be offered
a-really ‘good salary as-an- inducement to.good
men to accept the position; and to accept it per-
manently; :

The Hon. A C. - GREGORY said that, from
his-own ‘experience of matters of that sort, he
thoughtthe ' clause “'might: be - allowed " to
pass:as it stood; - though: the: salary “was
by no means: high, and: he would: rather
see it increased - than: ‘decreased. - Tt was
scarcely the function of that House to settle the
amount of salaries’; and though he was not going
to say it was not withintheir rights to do'so; it was
scarcely expedient; and he did not see any reason
why they should depart from ths customary rule
inthat: particular’ case. -If the  Government
determined: to-appoint ‘as:a member of-the land
board any gentleman who was-already a member
of ‘the Civil:Service, he ‘would'suggest- that that
gentleman should not be deprived of the retiring
allowance to'which he was already entitled under
the Civil Service Act.  ‘There could 'be a pro:
vision ‘made’ to: apply. - to that by the Execu-
tive " withont ‘the mnecessity ‘of - altering  the
Bill.- He' thought it very: necessary that the
Government should: “be left  perfectly: free to
select-whom' -they thought best for the position,
because, unless’the first members of ‘the board
could act thoroughly in accord with the Govern-
ment: of ‘the day, they would cértainly make &
terrible: muddle of the matter; and it was better
that an indifferent scheme should be carried:out
well than that s good scheme should: be carried
out indifferently. . -It was; for that:reason, much
better toleave the Government, as far as pos-
sible, unfettered in'the matter, and simnply make
them' responsible tothe Liegislature for: the way
in which they might exercise their discretion.: So
far ‘as - the ‘appointment, selection, and salary
were ' concerned, the clause might stand ‘as it
was, ‘with the exception of the verbal amend-
ment:suggested; ‘he believed; by the: Hon: Mr.
Thynne;-and: which:was the ‘only thing ‘he saw
any need to alter.

The: Hon. J. TAYLOR: said he’ still main-
tained that there were plenty of gentlemen to'be
found, able and willing to maintain the position
of - members’of the land:board at £1,000-ayear:
He had no: hesitationin saying that, whatever
Government niight be in power, if those men
carried out their duties well their salaries would
be raised.’ He pointed out that the position
was a permsanent one, because ¢clause 13 said ;—

“The members of the board shall hold office during good

behaviour, and shall not - be removed therefrom uilless
an‘address praying for:sich - reinoval ;shill-be presented
tothe Governor by the Legislative: Council ;and Isgis-
lative. Assembly ‘respectively in:the: same  se:sion of
Parliament.’
Tt was useless: to'say ‘that £1,000 a year was
a paltry sum'to pay as a salary for such a posi-
tion:: £1,000:a year was a rattling good salary
when:they took into-account:the: travelling ex-
penses allowed; and they could find very many
men eapable of accepting the position, whawould
be:proud to accept it at that amount of salary.

The Hon. A, J. . THYNNLE “said -he had' a
further amendment to propose.  “He proposed:to
add: the following words:to:the clause -

Or:to-hold or acquire any share:or interest in-anw
partnership or’ company which;has any ‘interest in any
suclh:holding or: license. :

That was intended to "extend the disability of
a'member of the board; and prevent his:holding
shares' in any ‘company that" might have an
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interest in any holding under the Act. A member
of the hoard, ‘in . the absence of ‘an‘amendment
such as he proposed; might hold a large number
of shares: in a. company, and still would not be
debarred from continuing  to hold those shares
under the clause as it at present stood:

The Hon. W. H. WALSH said this was a
Government Bill; and here was an amendment
moved by a member; of the. Opposition. What
he wished to point out was that the Government
were: allowing amendments to-be made in: their
own: Bill. :

Question put.

The Hox., W..H. WATLSH ‘said this wasan
amsndment moved:- in a:Government: Bill by, he
fanecied, a member: ‘of the Opposition; and ‘he
wanted to-know whether the Government would
accede to it ornot.:“There had been:mno demon:
stration -on the part of ‘the (Government.: He
wanted to fix upon something. 1f the Postmaster-
General ‘was ‘not going “to-avowedly agree with
the amendment,; he'should oppose;it.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAT said the
amendment was his own; but hehad certainly got
thesuggestion from the otherside. It object was
really to cover the intention 0f the framers'of the
clanse=—to settle the real meaning of the clause
beyond any doubt whatever,:

Amendinent agreed: -0,

The Hon, A.J. THYNNE moved, as a further
amendment,: that the following words ‘be added
at the end of the’ clause==‘* or to hold or acquire
any share or-interest in any partnership oricom-
vany which has'any interest ‘in any such holding
or license.”

The HoxN. Str'A. H. PALMER said the
effect of the amendment would be to- prevent
those: gentlemen from holding shares in a bank.
There was not a bank in the colony that was
notinterested in pastoral property. - They might
as well say at once that a man should'not wear a
black hat. They were making the Bill ridiculous
with all those restrictions:

Ths Hoxn: W. H: WALSH said the peculiarity
of the  Bill-=a' Government Bill-—at that stage
appeared: to be :that the : Government  were
employinga member of the Opposition: to miove
amendments: in’ their own measure;: That was
the peculiarity. - He really could not understand
the  position: they :occupied’ at  that moment.
They found:the Hon. Mr. Thynne, certainly one
of the most rising members he fancied they: had
in the House; and: the avowed -opponént of the
Postmaster-General;: actually ‘doing the Post-
master-Greneral’s -duty, as far as he could see;
and moving amendments which the Government
acquiesced in: or: probably formmulated.: What
was the meaning of it? Was it a (GGovernment
Bill, or werethey being trifled with ? That wasthe
real question. Nowthey weretold they were tread-
ing on-the toes of the banks: :Of course that could
not: be - allowed ! “Here they had ‘the Hon. Mr.
Thynue—he wished to'goodness he would discaid
that treacherous adviser of his (Hon. W Forrest)
~—here they had the Hon. Mr. Thynne moving
amendments which seemed to-him'to take away
some vital parts of the Bill; and it-was tacitly
acquiesced ‘in by the Postinaster-General: ~And
then they had the most extraordinary spectacle
of ‘the hon. the Postmaster-General, while the
matter was under discussion, going: over to the
other side of the House and privately conversing
with' the 'hon. member-who now led the Op-
position.

The ‘Hoxn. W. GRAHAM :said -he could not
vote -for the ‘amendment of the Hon.  Mr.
Thynne:: It went a great deal too far. - Fe con-
sidered - the amendment that had been  agreed
to made the clause quite strong  enough, if
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not too strong’;and if “the “amendment now
proposed -~ were -carried; so-far  as " he’ could
see, the only people” who ‘would: be competent
to sit'on the board would be two utterly impe-
cunious”individuals:who were not connected: in
in‘any way with banks—two retired’ clergymen
probably, o1 two broken-down squatters. Men
whothemselves might not be interested: in'hold-
ings under-the  clause might be' ¢alled upon to
act as executors and trusteesin all' sorts of ways';
and- ‘he: repeated  that the  amendment - went
altogether too far:

The How.A.:J. THYNNE thought the. hon.
Mr:Graham did not: understand: the full scope
of: the -amendment.  The ‘hon. gentleman: said
in one: sentence that only people “who ‘were
utterly -impecunious-could: be .qualified: to. hold
seats on the:board; but he must bearin mind
that present holders ‘of -freehold property: would
notbe ‘debarred. from:doing so, and any such
person’ who wished to take the position could sell
out’ his shares==which it might be a very wise
thing: to:-do;—and invest : the  proceeds  in
freehold  property, :which would’ become " so
scarce, if - the  Bill:»were carried -out -in  its
integrity, “that: it was  bound: -to increase
in value; much more’than it had done hitherto.
They had power under the clause to prevent a
member of theboard from-holding or acquiring
aninterest’ in any holding or license; and:in
order-to make the clause complete; they should
provide:that he should -have no"interest; directly
orindirectly,in suchmatters: If a manhadalarge
interestin a-limited pastoral ‘company he ought
not to be allowed to'have a seat on the board.

The Hox. W.. GRAHAM : What if he has
shares'in’a bank that has made advances on.the
property .t

The HoN. ‘A;-J, THYNNE: Then he would
be interested in the business: -He did not. care
very much whether: the amendment: was passed
or not, but merely wished' 'to: point :out thatto
carry the disqualification provided by the clause
to.itslogicaliconclusion:a member of ‘the board
should not :be: allowed' to:have any:interest,
dirvectly or indirectly;-in'any-holding under: the
Act. - Lf: the ‘opinions:of hon. gentlemen: were
against the amendment he should not press it.

The Hon. J. TAYLOR : ‘Withdraw it.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL said  he
thought, when :the Hon; Mr. Thynne: suggested
the amendment to him, that there was a great
deal ‘in;it; and: he thought so still ;- but:at the
same time he was bound to admit that there was
considerable force in the objection raised by Sic
Arthur Palmer and the Hon. "W Graham. =1t
would; ‘no doult, prevent: any person interested

" in ‘any bank which might happen tobe interested

as mortgagee of any holding under:the Act from
being qualified ‘to hold ‘a seat onthe board. Tt
was, therefore; better ‘toleave the disqualifica-
tion as it'stood.” He did not think any difficulty
was likely to arise under ‘it,  because if:a man
committed any breach of ‘the clause he would be
amenable to punishment.

The Hox. 'A. J. THYNNE, by consent of the
Committee; withdrew his amendment.

The Hox. W. H.; 'WATLSH said it occurred
to him:as “a ‘most’ extraordinary “thing that
upon:a-vital ‘matter of that kind; which was of
great interest to the people: of the colony, only
two or ‘three gentlemen  felt ‘it their- 'duty to
address themselves to'the question.: Surely the
town: of Ipswich was interested in the matter !
Surely the city of * Brisbane was!  The' hon.
Postmaster-General - -had - just “informed: him
that he came’ from Brisbane. = That was new
information: o them';  nobody  suspected it
hefore’; butb it seemed - most  extraordinary
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tha!:, in' a matter of that kind, affecting the
business institutions of - the colony, nobody,
excepting his hon. friend; Mr, Thynne," the
Hon. Mr. 'Taylor, and the Postmaster-General,
had' felt it their ~duty, or’ seemed to have
any - knowledge  to. impart to -the  Chamber.
Where “were " the representatives of Brisbane?
It was -perfectly “astounding that only two
or three members—men  probably: most-ignorant
on: the subject—chose, or:were’ permitted to
address the. Chamber. * He protested against
such”a matter—a matter of such “grave impor-
tance~—being rapidly passed: throngh the Cham:
ber - without “such ' consideration ‘as should ‘be
given toit by eminent men like his' hon. friend
from Ipswich; and other members of the Cham-
ber; “They had no business whatever, upon the
mere dictum of a Postmaster-General; or men like
himself, who knew nothing about’ the subject, to
pass o measure of such:grave importancs, affect-
ing the whole of ‘the industries and welfare of
the: colony.: He disliked it; he objected to it ;
and he called the attention’ of hon. gentlemen
~who: represented the public interests to the fact
that they had a duty to perform aswell as those
like himself who were—mere obstructionists.

The HoN. W. D. BOX said he was: sorry the
Hon. Mr. Walsh did not think hon. members
took sufficient interest in the Bill, . Although he
had been taught many years ago that silence
was_ golden; and speech was silver, yet he had
:watched every part. of the Bill with the greatest
interest -and anxiety. 'With regard to the re-
muneration proposed by the clause, he did not
think it was sufficient.. Tt might ‘be sufficient,
if ‘there ‘were = something  added to:it in the
way of a pension; and-he considered that, in
dealing with " an  Important position of  ‘that
kind, - it would ‘be  very ' much ‘better :to
follow the ‘wording. of ‘the Supreme Court Act,
and: give those who were appointed  members
of the board 4 pension after they had fulfilled
their duties for a number of years. To his mind;
there could not be a more important office: than
that of ‘a:member of ‘the board; for which that
officer 'was to: get £1,000 a year and travelling
expenses ; ‘and, as he had stated, he thought they
ought to add to the clause; or provide by a sub-
sequent clause that every member of the board,
after serving fifteen years; or upon being disabled
by permanent infirmity from the performance of
the duties of his office, should be able to demand
2 pension equal to half ‘the actual salary he had
been receiving,

Ho~NoURABLE MEMBERS: You cannot do'it:

The HoNx. W. D. BOX: It could be done,
because’ they ‘could fill in-the necessary words
and leave the amount blank to-be dealt with by
the ‘other House as they thought fit.  As had
already been’ stated, he 'did not' believe that
they would ‘get’ competent men to undertake
the: duties for £1,000. a year, if, when they had
done - their  work, they were  to  be  simply
bowed out. . If they wanted to get really
good men to fill the position; ‘and who were to
have all the powers of the Supreme Court, they
ought certainly to have a pension as well ‘as the
salary; and if the amount of money were not
stated, the question might-be  very fairly con-
sidered by that House.

The Hon. W. FORREST said that reference
had been made to the inability of that Chamber
to interfere with questions:of money:; but: there
was not a:word in: the Constitution Act 'to pre-
vent their: interfering, though it was not their
custom to do so.

The HoN. J. TAYLOR said: that one of the
judges had been peunsioned with £1,250 a year ;
a,ngl where ‘wag he inpw? Hea did not - spend
It in the colony, bt lived on that maney else.
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where.: “And  they ought to be very cautious
in" future in’ regard ‘to- pensions. Why. should
they pension:a man- after-fourteen years’ service?
Numbers -of squatters: had spenttheir: whole
lives.in obtaining a competency ; and he did not
see. why men should be pensioned after fourteen
years’-service during the most pleasurable part
of:their lives. - The Hon. Mr. Box was very free
with the people’s money.

The  Hon. W: H." ' WALSH said ~he" quite
agreed “with the remarks  of the "Hon. " Mr:
Taylor to:the effect” that’ they-had no right ' to
dispense the funds of ‘the colony. " They had no
business-to -enable the Government: to-appoint
officers  who, ‘after - a’ short” period: of  service;
would "beentitled to a retiring  allowance 'of
£1,000:a year, and it would ‘be a ‘scandal to:the
colony if ‘they were to do 0. “Whatservices
could: those men possibly. performto justify them
in" getting -such a:retiring allowance? - As the
Hon. Mr, Taylor said; a few years: very shortly
passed:.over. -And there were judges: in ‘receipt
of retiring allowances whicli were a discredit to
the colony. - Theré were one or two judges who
never-did- any great service to-the: colony; but
who, owing to their peculiar: position, -were:in
receipt of ‘retiring allowances -which could ‘not
be:checked’; and he quite agreed with ‘the- Hon:
Mz Taylor: in: protesting ' against anything
of - -the “kind. " It  was: distressing ‘to think
that, - while -they ' were  'trying :to: provide
for -the fair occupation of:the Crown’ lands of
the colony, they appeared  to be taking more
interest in the bestowal of two or three offices on
certain individuals: - He: would now apply ‘him-
self - immediately: to- the representative. of ‘the
Government- in: that - Chamber. It was two
months since the other ‘branch of the: Legis-
lature:-was: promised = that: . before : the: Bill
was-finally - considered  the ‘Government “would
state’ who ‘were  t0. ‘be the recipients of
office” under ' the Bill, 'and he now: begged the
Postmaster-General  to give that information;
Two monthsago it was promised that the public
should 'be told who were to ‘be the officers ap-
pointed under the Bill. - That had not been done,
and before they allowed the Bill to" pass another
stage they had: aright to-demand that informa-
tion. It was a most important matter to the
country -to know. ' The. Commons - had: either
abrogated: ‘or’forsaken  their duty, as far ‘as
he could: see, ‘towards: the persons they ‘repre-
sented: inthe- :country:;: ‘but.  that  was: no
reason why they shoulddo’ it  He charged the
Government distinetly ‘with ‘having accelerated
the passage of the Bill by their promise that: *
they would, before the Bill was passed; name the
executive officers, : the ‘grand: officers: who ‘were
to: be ‘appointed ‘members of the board.  On
behalf of the ‘country; which had been deceived;
he asked ‘who were' the officers“who' were going
to: carry out the:provisions of “the: -Bill?: If
they were ‘inferior men;  whomthey knew
to: -be  unfit to:perform their  duty, he was
quite sure ‘they would reject the: Bill-imime-
diately. - The:Government had: promised ‘the
country that' they would: say who. should: carry
out that extraordinary and important measure ;
andhe: called: upon:the: hon.: gentleman: who
represented the Government: to. announce to the
country and to that Committee who were those
ofﬁrl:ers before they went one jot: further with the
Bill.

HONOURABLE MEMBERS : Question !

The Hon. W. H.WALSH ‘repeated that the
Government ‘had ‘made  a’ promise  that they
would supply the information before the: Bill
passed. Vas - he  doing anything: wrong - in
asking . who ‘were to be the ‘administrators of ‘the
Act?"Was' it not on their belief in ‘the in:

tegrity of the administyators that the paespge of
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the measuré depended 2.~ He ' trusted: that the
Chairman would not hurriedly put a’ question of
so inucl importance.

The POSTMASTER - GENERAL: said " he
would just mention to the Commniittee that if
they did not make more: rapid progress in. the
future: than: they had ' done since  dinner-it
would " ‘be - ten :years Lefore: they got to the
endof :the: Bill. - They: had been  wasting  an
enorwmous’ quantity, of time on a matter in’ which
no:principle was involved. = He' thought: hon,
members imight ‘rest. satistied: that there' was
ample time for: the: Government to fulfil their
proiuise:between now and the passage of the Bill
into’law. He hoped more valuable time would
not-be wasted; but-that ‘some energy would: be
left in hon: gentlenien to.discuss matters of some
prineiple.

Clause; as'amended; put and passed.

Clause 13— How -member: of the board re-
moved  from' office “or: suspended’—passed ~as
Pprinted; ¢

On'clause 14, as follows ==

< In: the case of the:illness, suspension, or absence of
any member of -the hoard, the Governor; with the advice
aforesiid; mnay appoint some other personto-act'as the
deputy of- such: member during such-illness, suspension;
or:absince; and every such-person shall, during the time
for which he: shall act:as sucli: deputy, have-all - the
powers-and: perform:all the duties of such member of
the board.””

The HoN. A C. GREGORY said it was: his
intention to: propose “an -amendment;  and  he
thought the ‘best form it could take would be the
ingertion of the words ‘“or’for- other sufficient
reason” after  the word: ‘“board,” in: the 2nd
line of the: clause.  The object: he had ‘in
view . was ' to. - meet a certain  class.of
cases. incidentally “shadowed forth when clause
12" was under discussion. It might’ occur
that ‘though ‘a 'member of - the board might
notbe directly interested in:the matters ordi-
narily ‘coming “hefore the board; yet sometimes
he might, through close: connection' with ‘other
persons: who: were -interested; desire to be per-
mitted to withdraw fromtaking any part'in the
action -of 'the board. ' He might accidentally,
either ‘as trustee or.as: & near relative, be-
come interested; and ‘it was usual; when: an
individual who: was 'a ‘member: of 'a - board
became  interested, for him, to withdraw ;. but
a5 in:that case there were: only two members,
he could not’ withdraw; and- therefore he  pro-
posed to-give the Governor in Council the: right
to-appoint some other: person-for the time’ being.
Since he commenced to'speak it had been' sug-
gested to him: with' regard:to the form of :words
used in the ‘amendment; that it would be better
simply to insert the word ‘*inability - after the
word: ‘¢ suspension.” in the 1st line, and he would
therefore move that. ' The'clause would thenread
that;  “In case of the  illrness; suspension; or
inability, ‘or ‘absence; of  any ~member of ‘the
board, -the -Governor: in--Council ‘may “appoint
some other, person to ‘act as the deputy of such
member,” ete.

Amendment put and. passed.

The Hon.: W. H. WALSH said he: could not
understand it all.

The CHATRMAN said there was no’ question
before the Committee.

The: HoNoW. H. - WALSH said he dared say.
that in:the opinion of ‘the Chairman there ‘was
no -question - before the Committee. - "When he
(Hon: Mr. Walsh) saw three eminent members
of “that. Chamber putting their heads: together—
especially gentlemen who held the most diverse
opinions—and holding a private solemn conclave,
his_ suspicions were arouyed, and he asked the
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excellent representative of what wasright on the
other: side whether: he “had beenconsulted on
the matter at all-? It struck him very-forcibly
that the "Postmaster-General “was intentionally
leaving that hon. gentleman out of consideration.
He did not hesitate to say that whenever he saw
three prominent members: putting their heads
together and whispering; he had grave suspicions.
He knew: nothing abotit the clause, but  he
was quite satisfied that there 'was sommething
wrong - in"it, ‘because  the ' Postmaster-General
and :the ' Hon.,  Mr. Gregory seemed to have
agreed: on - the subject:: That it contained
something -dangerous. to. the  liberty.of - the
subject, he ‘had'not the least doubt. He knew
nothing about the: clause, but he: would -divide
the Committee on'it." He:objected to three: per-
sons agreeing -to ‘an. alteration in:the Bill and
expecting -the  Committee: to abide by it The
Government - hiad introduced: the ‘Bill:into that
Chamber - after 'a searching “examination  in
another'place, and they ought tostand by it; and.
not go there to employ the Hon: Mr. : Gregory
to amend-it.

The' POSTMASTER-GENERATL “said - he
had to propese an amendment in the 2nd line of
the clause.  The words *“with the advice afore-
said ” had got in accidentally.. He moved that
they 'be: omitted, and the words ‘¢ in Council ”
substituted.

Amendment put and passed.

On the motion’of the HoN. A; C.GREGORY,
a-consequential amendment. was made-in the
4th line by inserting the -word *‘inability” after
‘¢ suspension.”?

The Hox. ' W. H. WALSH: said he would
like  to know whether the Hon. Mr. Gregory
(])Sr 1the Postmaster-General was in: charge of the

ilk

The How. "W.  GRAHAM said there¢ was no
question before the :Committee.

The Hon.. W.. H: WALSH said the question
was whether a' certain: clause should be. passed,
and he rose tospeak to that when he was inter-
rupted; as he expected he would be, by the Hon.
Mr. Graham. ' Nevertheless, he contended that
he'was ‘in. possession of “the Chair. What he
wanted to  know was whether the: Hon., Mr.
Gregory or the Postmaster-Geeneral was in' charge
of the  Bill, ‘because “he noticed: that the Hon.
Mr.:Gregory was proposing a clausé. - That was
a most extraordinary thing for a private member
to do/in.an important Bill like :that Dbefore the
Committee. A most important amendment had
been proposed ‘and passed without the Govern-
ment expressing any opinion:about it.. - That was
what he wished to ‘say when the Hon. Mr.
Graham imprudently interrupted him.  He ob-
jected to-an: important Bill being passed through
that Chamber under the ‘suspices: of the Hon.
Mr. Gregory, as the representative of ‘the: Gov-
ernment.There could’be nothing more offensive
to-the people - than the idea that the hon. gentle-
man; with all“his knowledge and ability; should
act as mentor or ‘adviser to the Gtovernment in
passing - the Land “Bill' through- that - Chamber,
and he implored: the  Postmaster-General to
extricate  them' fromthe “dilemma they were
now in.

The ‘Hox, A. C. GREGORY moved: that
the words ‘¢ and be subject to:the same disabili-
ties as?’be inserted after the words ¢’ duties of,”
in thelast: line of ‘the clause, 0 as to make: it
read, * Hvery such person shall, during the time
for ‘which he shall ‘act as such: deputy, have all
the powers and perform all the duties of, and be
subject to the same disabilities as such members
of .the board.” The object of the amendment was
to put the deputy in exactly the same position ag
g memnber of the hoard, . 0 n o i
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The Hoxn. W. H.. WALSH ‘said that: surely
such ‘& great alteration' as that 'was intended to
produce, should ' meet = with = some’ expression
of “opinion’‘on the “part ‘of  the  Government !
‘Were the "Government going to give their
sanction to: ' that 'sort of = thing? . ~If: they
were, he was not. - He objected to'a Government
measire - being ‘mutilated and “destroyed 'in'its
principle and integrity by amendments made by
the Hon. Mr. Gregory. “If ‘the (Government
sanctioned those amendments: they should intro-
duce  them, ‘and ‘not submit to having: their
Bill - amended ' in" every: clause by ‘the  Hon.
Mr. - Gregory. Here they had a  Bill' to
revolutionise the whole: of: the affairs ‘of the
country, ‘and ‘every clatise they 'came: to so far
had been materially amended by suggestions or
motions on the part of the Hon. My Gregory.
He would divide the Committee on every amend-
ment suggested or introduced, if it were only to
show the Government that they had introduced
that: Bill, and should not allow so. many amend-
ments to be carried:

The: POSTMASTER.GENERAT said that,
if it would: satisfy the hon. 'gentleman, he would
inform' him that. he had no objection: to the
amendment proposed:

The HoN, W.-H. WALSH :
not propose it?

The "POSTMASTER-GENERAT, said - 'he
had: not - proposed . it; because the  Hon:Mr,
Gregory: proposed’ it.- It would not hurt the
Bill one way. or another: if it were passed; and
might, perhaps, clear up seme dotbts on’ the
subject.

The Hon.: W. H. WALSH : Then T shall
vote for the Government on every subject: T
shall support them on every amendment moved.

The  POSTMASTER-GENERAL ;T  am
-glad to-hear it, and I ‘hope the hon. gentleman
will give me a ‘silent vote for the remainder of
the evening,
Question = That  the words proposed to ‘be
inserted be so inserted-—put and passed.

The Hox, W. H. WALSH : Divide!

The::CHAIRMAN " Does ‘the hon. gentle-
man call for ‘a'division?

The Hon. W. H. WALSH: Yes; certainly.: I
will divide ‘every motion suggested.

The Committee divided :—

CoNTEXTS, 20:

The  Hons. Sir A . Palmer, C. 8. Mein, W..Forrest,
J.:Taylor, T.: L. Murray-Prior, J. Swan;  W. Pettigrew,
J..C.:Heussler, W, Graham; F. 1L Iart; W. G. Power,
G. King, A. H.:Wilson; J. O Smyth, ‘W. Aplin, J..C. Foote;
A:CiiGregory, ~A. - J. Thynne, W. I Lambert, ‘and
+W.:D. Box:

‘Why did you

NON-CONTENTS; 1;
The Hon,: W, H. Walsh,

Question resolved in the affirmative:
Clause; as amended; put and passed.
Clause 15— Board to-hold cotrts.”

Question—That the clause as read stand part
of the Bill—put.

The Hox. W. H. WALSH said they had just
arrived at a very extraordinary conclusion. They
had ‘the spectacle of ‘the Government: voting
against their own measure, and he wished to ask
the Postmaster-General what he intended to do
next.:He had-a right to demand; ‘and every
hon.-member n:that House had ‘a’ right to
demand; what course the Government’ meant to
pursue: next,  He had endeavoured ‘to: support
the Government himself in'the passage: of their
+Bill, and when they came to a:division’ upon a
vital clause in the Bill—one of the most impor-
tant Bills, perhaps the ‘most important Bill
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that had ever been introduced to that Chamber
—he found’ himself voting - for: the -Govern-
ment. - without ' a  single  supporter ‘from  the
Government: side’ of the  House. ' The :Gov-
ernment “absolutely - commanded - the dissolu-
tion of their: supporters. They ‘had ‘intro-
duced a  most: immportant - measure, and -had
comeon to- the discussion of: pérhaps: the most
vital clause in that measure, and the Government
voted against it themselves, ‘and left him' as the
only supporter of -the measure, - Surely he had
a-right to demand what the intentions:of the
Government: were. - -If-the Postmaster-General
would not give him the information he desired it;
was a- matter which'should 'be explained; if not
to-that Chamber at all events to the country.
Tt was to him-at that - moment thoroughly in-
explicable.

Queéstion - put.

The ‘Hox:W. H. WALSH: said there was no
particular reason for hurry, and he maintained
the Government representative in that Chamber
should give: him some:explanation: of the extra-
ordinary: proceedings ‘that-had taken place that
evening. - He had introduced ‘a most important
BRill “and had voted' against it himgelf. ~"He
had voted against a vital clause of the Bill,
and he had given no explanation, and he (Hon.
Mr. Walsh) maintained that he had a right o
demand an explanation from the hon. gentleman.
Hon: members who would submit to:that kind of
treatment certainly deserved it; and all he could
say was that he would 'not be a partner in the
obloquy-of the position they occupied. . He:did
not know  what -arrangement: had been: made
between  the Postmaster-General and the Hon.
Mr. Gregory, the Hon: Mr. Taylor, the Hon. Mr.
Murray-Prior, or the Hon. Mr. anything else.
Buthe saidthat the avowed antagonist of the Bill
~-the Hon, Mr: Gregory--had introduced amend-
ments, and the Postmaster-General niot only sub-
mitted tacitly to those amendmeits being made,
but actually: supported: them.: He (Hon. Mr.
Walsh), as a’ supporter of: the Government and
one:who wished to see a good Land  Bill passed,
would not allow such a state of ‘things o go on,
and ‘he would divide the Committee upon every
amendment that was introduced.

The POSTMASTER-GENERAL said- that,
as the hon. member had evidently made up his
mind-=despite the desire of every other member
of the Committes to proceed to the transaction
of the business: of the country—to prevent any
business being done; he begged to-move that the
Chairmanleave the chair; report: progress, and
ask leave to sit'again.

Question put:and passed.

The : House resumed ; and, on the motion of
the POSTMASTER-GENERAL, the : Com:
mittee obtained leave to sit again to-morrow.

The House adjourned at 9 o’clock.





